Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, December 11, 2019, 6:30 pm

Present: Tim Reynolds, Lara Ramsey, Dan Klatz, Paula Ingram, Liz Preston, Joe Wyman, Noelle
Barrist Stern, Deirdre Arthen, Karen Sise, Kelly Woods, Myssie Casinghino

Regrets: Rich Senecal, Dawn Reesman, Matt Dube

Facilitator: Tim

Notetaker: Noelle

Guests: Kate Saccento

List keeper: Joe

Timekeeper: Paula

Mission statement read by:  Kelly
Topic Discussion Action
(if necessary)
Announcements/ Announcements:
Appreciations/ None
Acknowledgements Appreciations/Acknowledgements:
There were several appreciations related to the Winter
Fair: Deirdre appreciated all of the parents who
helped, especially Lei Fei who oversaw several craft
stations; Tim appreciated Marguerite and the music
program; and Karen appreciated Jesse and Jared who
helped with the sound production for the
performances.
Any thank you notes None
needed?
BOT Visibility this The Solstice Celebration is on Friday, December 20th.
month? BOT members should try to attend.
HCCPS BOT Meeting Minutes: December 11, 2019 page 1




Minutes

There were no edits to the November 13th BOT
meeting minutes.

Tim moved to approve
the minutes; Joe
seconded; the minutes
were approved by
consensus.

Public Comment
Period

None

Friends of Hilltown
(Myssie)

Art Spark is going to be on March 14th at the Garden
House at Look Park. FOH has been reaching out for
sponsorship to underwrite the event. They are having
trouble finding people who feel comfortable reaching
out to businesses and asking for support. Myssie
asked if the BOT had any suggestions for people in
the HCCPS community who might be willing to help
and who have connections with local businesses. A
question was raised about whether BOT members can
solicit contributions. In response, it was suggested
that any BOT members who sought to help FOH
contact the Ethics Commission for guidance.

Art Spark will be an adults-only event. There will
also be a kid-friendly HCCPS 25th birthday
celebration at the end of the school year.

2019 MCAS Report
(Lara)

The good news is that HCCPS’s rating is “substantial
progress toward targets” and the science achievement
score was 4/4.

ELA scores were compared for 2017, 2018, and 2019.
There has been improvement in the number of
students moving from “partially meeting
expectations” to “meeting expectations.”

For math, HCCPS has remained stable. When
compared to the state averages: HCCPS tends to be in
the middle of the bell curve; it has fewer students in
“exceeding expectations” and “not meeting

HCCPS BOT Meeting Minutes: December 11, 2019

page 2




expectations,” at either end of the bell curve.

In the past two to three years, there has been
especially high growth in: 6th grade ELA; 5th grade
math; and 6th grade math (although there was a dip

this year with the new curriculum).

Areas for improvement include decreasing
performance gaps in math achievement between
genders and in ELA achievement among
economically disadvantaged students. However, a
large percentage of the students designated as
economically disadvantaged also had learning
disabilities and the ELA categories those students
struggled with were connected with their learning
disabilities.

The trend in lower eighth-grade math scores did not

continue.

Looking to 2020, there are questions about, among
other things, whether: there is an opportunity to
increase the “exceeding expectations” results in ELA
and math; the new math curriculum will impact test
scores over time; and steps can be taken to close the

gender achievement gap.

HCCPS will continue to take steps that may impact
the MCAS scores, such as continuing with the Making
Meaning and Being a Reader curriculum, providing
training in trauma-informed teaching practices, and
providing professional development in anti-bias

education practices.

Expansion
Review/Completion of
LRP (Dan)

Dan went through the history of the current LRP. The
largest problem HCCPS was dealing with when the
LRP was developed was the facility (the former site in
Haydenville). The BOT and Directors determined
that moving locations would require an improved
financial situation. A strategic choice was made to

HCCPS BOT Meeting Minutes: December 11, 2019

page 3




increase the size of the school at the 6th-grade level,

to broaden the school’s financial resources. HCCPS

obtained approval from DESE to amend its charter to
increase the size of the school and the school moved

to its current site.

It is important that, before we move to the next LRP,
there is a thorough review of how successful HCCPS
has been in meeting the goals of the current LRP. For
this reason, from January through April, the Directors
will look at how HCCPS has met the needs of its
students as it has expanded into the 6th through 8th
grades.

Dan explained that, from an administrative
perspective, they will review admissions data, the
fiscal implications of the larger program, and the
facility.

Deirdre explained that, from a community
perspective, they will review the integration of new
families into the school, especially as students enter
HCCPS in 6th grade. They will also look at the
connection of the 6th-8th graders with the rest of the
school and what sort of leadership roles the older
students can have.

Lara explained that, in the education domain, they will
review how well HCCPS is meeting the social and
emotional needs of the 6th-8th grade students, how
experiential hands-on leaming is working in these
grades, and whether there is an intimate community of
learners in the classrooms.

There will be focus groups and surveys.

New Business - Identify
only

None

HCCPS BOT Meeting Minutes: December 11, 2019

page 4




Committee Reports -
Questions only

None

Meeting Wrap-Up/
Evaluation

Next Meeting: January 8, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.

Facilitator: Tim
Snacks: Lara
Drinks: Kelly

Newsletter blurb: Joe

Review Action Items

Reviewed action items.

Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m.

Tentative Agenda Topics for January 8, 2020 Board Meeting:

LRP Update from the Directors: First steps of a proposal and a timeline

HCCPS BOT Meeting Minutes: December 11, 2019

page 5




School Expansion Evaluation 2020

Purpose: The school decided to expand enrollment in grades 6-8 as part of the Long Range Plan
published in 2013. We are coming to the end of this LRP. 2020-2021 is the deadline for a full-scale

evaluation of the reorganization of grades 6th-8th.

This evaluation will describe the successes and shortcomings of our now-complete expansion in terms
of the school’s mission, the school’s finances, our physical capacity, spheres of community, and the

academic and social-emotional experience for 6th-8th grade students.

Timeline: January 8th: ~ Board discusses outline for School Expansion Evaluation (SEE).
January 27th: Directors meet with consultant who will facilitate focus groups
January 31th: Domain Council reviews proposed SEE focus questions
March 31st:  Deadline for focus groups to wrap up
April 30th:  Share findings with community (possibly before April Break)

Structure:
 Focus groups facilitated by consultant

Parents of current 6-8 graders
Teachers of 6-8 graders
Teachers of K-S students
6-8 grade students

Climate surveys (students and staff)

Survey for all parents

Data analysis (finances, enrollment, participation in co-curricular activities...)

Content categories for surveys. focus groups, and community meeting:

Community among Prisms & Purples students
Community among Prisms and Purples parents
Community of students K-3
Community of staff K-8
Communication
Integration
6th-8th Curriculum (non-exhaustive examples of subtopics follow)
Vertical alignment
Standards

Homework



PROGRAM QUALITY Since its inception, HCCPS academic and co-curricular programming has
evolved to address student needs, build upon faculty strengths,be responsive to parents, and take
advantage of relationships with local community organizations. The school offers strong academic and

social emotional skill building in a culture that promotes community connections.

As we look toward the future, it will be important to assess and prioritize program offerings and
develop resources and organizational relationships to ensure that student needs are addressed through

effective and sustainable programs.

Goal 1: Grades 6-8 Program ReorganizationPurpose: To better serve the academic and social needs of

students in grades 6-8
Evaluate middle school program and use findings to revise. Full scale evaluation in 2020.

Fiscal implications: This will have implications on staffing, facility and materials. Ata minimum, there
will be 2 additional full time teachers, an expansion of the special education department and several

part-time positions. Additional space and associated costs will be based on broader site considerations.

Progress Monitoring: The [Director of Teaching and Learning] will be responsible for the
implementation of program adjustments and for a formal review after three years of full
implementation. Minor and urgent programs changes can be made as needed during the gradual and

then full-scale implementation.



ELEMENT‘\RY AND &FCON DARY

EDUCATION

HILLTOWN COOPERATIVE CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL

SUMMARY OF REVIEW

Easthampton, MA
January 2020

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
75 Pleasant Street

Malden, MA 02138

Phone: (781) 338-3227

Fax: (781) 338-3220



EACHUSE

\&f ' ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY

EDUCATION

This document was prepared by the
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
leffrey C. Riley
Commissioner

The Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, an affirmative action employer, is committed to
ensuring that all of its programs and facilities are accessible to all members of the public.
We do not discriminate on the basis of age, color, disability, national origin, race, religion, sex, gender identity, or sexual
orientation.
Inquiries regarding the Department’s compliance with Title [X and other civil rights laws may be directed to the
Human Resources Director, 75 Pleasant St., Malden, MA 02148-4906. Phone: 781-338-6105.

© 2020 Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
Permission is hereby granted to copy any or all parts of this document for non-commercial educational purposes. Please credit
the “Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.”

This document printed on recycled paper

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
75 Pleasant Street, Malden, MA 02148-4906
Phone 781-338-3000 TTY: N.E.T. Relay 800-439-2370
www.doe.mass.edu




TABLE OF CONTENTS

About the Charter SChool RENEWaEI PrOCESS ......cccciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis i sisas s ansasnsssibssessssrssssnsens 1
SCHOO| DVEIVIEW ...oviieeeeeeiicieiicsieeeanessven s sesbi osnesaaibs amne s o mbiis sh uibbe 1454140 o LA AU S b S S T 2
SChOO! PrOTIl e sreveeer i vsvse e e e s nige oo n S R e S e mo SR s S0 S ST s e s i 2
Yol gL T3 o OO s S B e Sy 2

L RT Lo =] e A D L= T Y= A= Lot SOOI PP 3
Executive Summary of SChool PErformance..........coiviviiiiiiiiriies s e 4
FINAINES 1veevevreernincrimiinienistesiesaesreoseesssssssane sossuesnses s s copenar e RSP AR ST ARV A R A ST TS AR S P R S 5
FaithfUINESS t0 CRAILEr .......viiviee et cree e ser e s sabesb e i ssssas e s e RS SR T T O AR S ST HO PR NSV ISR ASB AR LR g AT P YR OY 5
Criterion 1: Mission and Key Design EIements ..o ssisnss s 5
Criterion 2: ACCESS AN EQUILY ...covieierii i ciasiesissesssissnsasioniiss soasisntbasnsisasssessesssnssaiaessesissssaanss sgesess 9
Criterion 3: COMPIIANCE tiiuit ittt b bbb sh bbb a s e b b e es ke e o b g s e b e s paa s b e e b s e b d e s b e sb b s b e e 13
Criterion 4: DISSEMINGTION ....iuiisiimieimsib insiastesianiis s i iiis st anisss bl sy T e s i v Wit 13
ACAUEIIC PrOZIamM SUCCESS. ..vieiuiiiireretreessaressssarteiise s ibre s s s s s ba e et b b e e sbs s seraseesb b s e s aar s s aaese b s e s iar s s ransansaes 14
Criterion 5: STUAENt PErfOrManCE. ...oivi ittt bbb e b s e e a s e b ba b s ehb s b s sk b s 14
Criterion 6: Program DEIIVEIY ...ttt srs s s st s esnesan e same s b e ems s eas ke as s ad s 17
Organizational Viability ........cccveeeerirerenmnneesirssonninneseamingssen st m s vs o aeS S SRS T S TSRS 20
CriterioN 9: GOVEIMANCE ... ...veiiiieeiiererireeseiseesameresosbiesb s st s ek b b s s sass e e aas s b b ae s sams s e ana e b e e s smas s nnsen b s e shns 20
Appendix A: Accountability Plan Performante ...t e b 23
Appendix B: Access and EQUILY ..ot cuvissarssppsnsstsssssssasnssnsssrmnnvansagsarennspasmsspmosusasspsns 28
A0 Te L=y o) A=Y oY 2=y o O USROS 28
SEUAENT INAICATOTS .. viiieiiieeeevcteeerree e e ee s e e e sae e s s e SRS S s s S S by S B S a6 S B RS S F RN S Pt o0 32
Appendix C: Student PerfOrmance ... sistsaisisivsnsasisniinessvonssssarssmssmesiarsssssse shassessasuasapesnass 37
OVEIAI RESUILS ..eeeieeiiiiiiievieieererveneeeseeneen e e s anae s oon e s e 3R A A TSR O3 R R T FORR S AT PR 37
Results for Students in the High Needs SUDEIOUD ...t s 38
Detailed Data for EACh INAICAtOr........oiiiiiieerie ettt et i e sa s ana s et a e aan s 39
ApPeNndiX D: FINANCE .cvvereverreareenereneesorsesssssansssssnsassessos GaNEsBoNbHoo bR T U oR oA Sh OGS PRa s o IR 41
Appendix E: SoUrces of EVIAENCE .......c.cuiiiiiiniiieninineiengassasmssrassssnpons svsitssssvais fssorsssnssnssmsnassvssis paasnssnsdaave 43
Appendix F: Renewal Inspection MethodolOgy ..o 44

Renewal INSPection SChEAUIE ....vviieiiiiieeee e s s s sma s n s s s e 45



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

The charter school regulations state that “the decision by the Board [of Elementary and Secondary
Education] to renew a charter shall be based upon the presentation of affirmative evidence regarding
the faithfulness of the school to the terms of its charter, including the extent to which the school has
followed its recruitment and retention plan and has disseminated best practices in accordance with
M.G.L. c. 71, § 89(dd); the success of the school's academic program; and the viability of the school as an
organization” 603 CMR 1.11(2). Consistent with the regulations, recommendations regarding renewal
are based upon the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education’s (Department} evaluation of
the school’s performance in these areas. In its review, the Department has considered both the school’s
absolute performance at the time of the application for renewal and the progress the school has made
during the first four years of its charter. Performance is evaluated against both the Massachusetts
Charter School Performance Criteria (Criteria) and the school’s accountability plan.

The charter renewal process begins when a charter school submits to the Department an Application for
Renewal of a Public School Charter (Application for Renewal). After the Department has determined the
Application for Renewal is complete, the Department works with the school to schedule a renewal
inspection.

The renewal inspection provides the Department with current information about the school’s
performance relative to the Criteria. The Department conducts two types of renewal inspections: full
criteria renewal inspections. Both types of renewal inspection visits collect evidence that are required
for a renewal determination as outlined by M.G.L. c. 71, § 89(dd). The type of renewal inspection a
school receives depends on a number of factors, including the school’s age, size, whether the school is
operating under conditions or probation, recent major expansions, and prior academic performance.
The Department may contract with an independent organization to conduct the renewal inspection. For
more details about the renewal inspection, see the Charter School Renewal Inspection Protocaol.

The Summary of Review (SOR) summarizes the school’s performance over the five-year charter term,
reflecting evidence compiled throughout the charter term from sources such as annual reports, site visit
reports, and state assessment results. See Appendix F: Sources of Evidence for more details. The SOR
incorporates descriptions of evidence gathered during the renewal inspection®. The renewal inspection
team prepares these descriptions, and they are included in the gray shaded boxes in the body of the
report?. The SOR highlights evidence for six Criteria aligned with the statutory requirements for charter
renewal outlined by M.G.L. c. 71, § 89(dd): Criterion 1: Mission and Key Design Elements; Criterion 2:
Access and Equity; Criterion 3: Compliance; Criterion 4: Dissemination; Criterion 5: Student
Performance; and Criterion 9: Governance. The SOR also includes evidence related to other Criteria
assessed during the renewal inspection.

1 The renewal inspection to Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School was conducted by Department staff on
September 24, 2019.

2 Descriptions of evidence gathered during the renewal inspection constitute the renewal inspection report
referenced in 603 CMR 1.11.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 1



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

SCHOOL OVERVIEW

SCHOOL PROFILE

Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School (Hilltown)

Type of Charter Commonwealth Location Easthampton
Regional or Non- Regional Districts in Region Amherst-Pelham,
Regional Belchertown, Central

Berkshire Regional,
Easthampton, Erving,
Frontier Regional,
Gateway Regional, Gill
Montague Regional,
Granby, Greenfield,
Hadley, Hampshire
Regional, Hatfield,
Hawlemont Regional,
Leverett, Mohawk
Regional, New Salem-
Wendell, Northampton,
Orange (Mahar Regional),
Pioneer Valley Regional,
South Hadley, Ware

Year Opened 1995 Years Renewed 2000, 2005, 2010, 2015
Maximum Enrollment 218 Current Enroliment 218°

Chartered Grade Span K-8 Current Grade Span K-8

Students on Waitlist 2564 Current Age of School 25

Mission Statement:

e Toinvolve young people in a school which uses experiential, hands-on activities, the arts, and
interdisciplinary studies, to foster critical thinking skills and a joy of learning.

e  To sustain a cooperative, intimate community of students, staff, families and local community members,
which guides and supports the school and its educational programs.

e To cultivate children’s individual voices and a shared respect for each other, our community, and the world
around us.

SCHOOL HISTORY

e Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School (Hilltown) received its charter in 1995 and opened in
1995, serving 40 students in kindergarten through grade 4.

3 This is the number as of October 1, 2019. Source: Profiles
4 This is the number as of March 15, 2019, as reported in the Massachusetts Charter School Waitlist Initial Report
for FY 2020, found at: http://www.doe.mass.edu/charter/enrollment/

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 2



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

In October 2008, the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (Board) approved an
amendment to increase the school’s maximum enrollment from 154 to 180 students in
kindergarten through grade 8.

In October 2012, the Board approved an amendment to increase the school’s maximum
enrollment from 180 to 218 students in kindergarten through grade 8.

In October 2013, the Board approved an amendment to permanently relocate the school from
Haydenville to Easthampton beginning with the 2014-15 school year.

The school has a leadership structure that consists of three directors (formerly coordinators)
who report to the board of trustees. The leadership team consists of directors of teaching and
learning, community and family engagement, and administration.

In June 2017, the administrative coordinator of 21 years retired. The board hired the education
coordinator as the director of administration and hired a new director of teaching and learning.
The school received a Check-In Site Visit in 2016.

STUDENT DEMOGRAPHICS

Enroliment by Race/Ethnicity®

Race/Ethnicity Percentage of Student Body
African-American 0.9

Asian 23

Hispanic 5

Native American 0

White 79.4

Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander 0

Multi-Race, Non-Hispanic 12.4

Selected Populations®

Title Percentage of Student Body
First Language not English 0.5

English Language Learner 0

Students with Disabilities 20.6

High Needs 30.3
Economically Disadvantaged 17

5> Source: Profiles
6 Source: Profiles

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 3



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF SCHOOL PERFORMANCE

Massachusetts Charter School Performance Criteria

Faithfulness to Charter Rating’

Criterion 1: Mission and Key Design Elements

Throughout the charter term, Hilltown has been faithful to its mission and has implemented its ©® Meets
key design elements. Hilltown met a majority of the measures in its Accountability Plan.

Criterion 2: Access and Equity

Hilltown provides information to the public regarding non-discriminatory enroliment practices
and the availability of special education programs English learners. The school provides few

, - ) . . Partiall

translated materials for families whose first language is not English. The school has been Meets y
mostly successful in recruiting and retaining a demographically comparable population.

During the charter term, the school’s rates of in-school and out-of-school suspension were

consistently below the statewide average.

Criterion 3: Compliance

Hilltown is in compliance with program requirements as determined by the Tiered Focused Not Rated
Monitoring (TFM) and Coordinated Program Review (CPR) Reviews. Hilltown is out of

compliance with state regulations regarding teacher qualifications.
Criterion 4: Dissemination < Ppartially
During the charter term, Hilltown engaged in limited dissemination activities. Meets
Academic Program Success

Criterion 5: Student Performance Not requiring

2019 Overall Classification: | assistance or
intervention

Cumulative Progress Toward Improvement Targets: 57%
2019 Accountability Percentile: 62
Organizational Viability
Criterion 9: Governance
Throughout the charter term, members of the Hilltown board have been active and involved in ® Meets

their roles as public agents, providing competent and appropriate governance and oversight of
the school.

7 Rating Key:

@ Exceeds: The school fully and consistently meets the criterion and is a potential exemplar in this area.

@ Meets: The school generally meets the criterion and/or minor concern(s) are noted.
Partially Meets: The school meets some aspects of the criterion but not others and/or moderate concern(s)
are noted.

@ Falls Far Below: The school falls far below the criterion and/or significant concerns are noted.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 4



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

FINDINGS

FAITHFULNESS TO CHARTER

CRITERION 1: MISSION AND KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS

The school is faithful to its mission, implements the key design elements outlined in its

. . o ® Meets
charter, and substantially meets its Accountability Plan goals.

Finding: Throughout the charter term, Hilltown has been faithful to its mission and has implemented its
key design elements.

e The school’s mission is to use experiential, hands-on activities, the arts, and interdisciplinary
studies to foster critical thinking and a joy of learning; to sustain a cooperative, intimate
community; and to cultivate children’s individual voices and shared respect for all people.
During a visit in Year 22 and during the renewal inspection, site visitors found the school was
operating in a manner that was faithful to the mission. The school implements experiential and
interdisciplinary instruction and assessments that integrate the arts, emphasizes student voice
through presentations and performances, and has embedded community service into the
culture of the school. The school further maintains an intimate community of students, families,
and local community members. Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal
inspection is described in further detail below.

e The school has six key design elements: cooperative community, family involvement, student
voice, strong foundational skills, consensus based governance, and experiential,
interdisciplinary, hands-on activities with an emphasis on the arts. During a visit in Year 22 and
during the renewal inspection, site visitors found evidence of each of these being implemented
with fidelity. The school provides multi-grade programming for all students, almost all board
members are parents of Hilltown students or alumni, and students choose from a variety of
project options to demonstrate their knowledge. In addition, the school assesses and builds
students’ academic and social and emotional foundational skills, all board votes are made by
consensus during meetings, and all students in grade 8 complete a culminating interdisciplinary
research project. Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal inspection is described
in further detail below.

Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal inspection:
School stakeholders share a common understanding of most aspects of the school’s mission.

e The mission of the school is to engage students in a school which uses experiential, hands-on
activities, the arts, and interdisciplinary studies to foster critical thinking skills and a joy of
learning, to sustain a cooperative, intimate community of students, staff, families and local
community members which guides and supports the school and its education program, and to
cultivate children’s individual voices and a shared respect for each other, our community, and
the world around us.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 5



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

¢ Board members, school leaders, and teachers interviewed during the renewal inspection
consistently reported on the school’s experiential and interdisciplinary studies, which include
the arts. All stakeholders reported the school has an intimate community, which includes
families and local community members, and fosters children’s individual voices and a shared
respect for members of the community. Stakeholders did not report on some elements of the
school’s mission, such as fostering critical thinking skills and a joy of learning.

The school is operating in a manner that is faithful to its mission and is implementing its key design
elements. In describing how the mission is realized in the operation of the school, stakeholders
described most of the six key design elements (KDEs) articulated in the school’s current Accountability
Plan. Evidence of the school’s implementation of each KDE is discussed below.

Interconnected community of children and adults (KDE 1)

e Hilltown develops and maintains an interconnected school community in a variety of ways. All
stakeholders reported, and the school’s calendar confirms, the school has a variety of all
school and multi-grade structures, which include all school community celebrations and
meetings, mini-courses, older students matched with younger students for community
building, and students rotating through multi-grade lunch to meet different students. All
classrooms are multi-aged, except for grade 6, and students have the same teacher for two
consecutive years. Older students in these classrooms are expected to serve as role models
for their younger classmates.

e Of the 40 percent of parents who responded to the parent satisfaction survey, almost all
parents (93 percent) agreed with a statement about the school’s strong sense of community.

e The school partners with local organizations on field trips and community service projects and
invites members of the community to annual grade 8 presentations. The school also partners
with international organizations for community service projects.

e Since the school received approval in 2012 to increase student enroliment from 180 to 218
students, Hilltown has been working to balance the additional middle school students while
still maintaining core aspects of the mission. As the school grew to reach its maximum
enroliment, all stakeholders described how the school restructured its middle school
classrooms to accommodate additional students. From 2012 to 2017, the grade 7/8 structure
was two teachers who each taught two content areas. During the 2017-18 school year, the
school changed the structure to be four content area teachers who each taught one core
content area. All stakeholders reported this practice decreased the quality of the connections
between students, teachers, and families. Board members also added that moving from one
teacher for two years to four teachers was a huge adjustment for students and families.
During the 2018-19 school year, Hilltown switched the middle school structure back to two
teachers who each teach two content areas in 7/8 classrooms. School leaders reported over
the past year, communication with families in 7/8 classrooms has improved, teachers feel
more ownership of students’ overall success, and program structures remain consistent for
students across middle school grades. Board members reported this switch also supports
students to build the skills and confidence they need in high school.

Hands-on, experiential, interdisciplinary approach to learning with an emphasis on the arts (KDE 2)

e All stakeholders reported, site visitors observed, and documents confirmed the that the
school provides a hands-on experiential, interdisciplinary approach to learning which
integrates the arts. The school has structures to support this KDE, including weekly planning

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 6



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

time between general education and arts teachers to integrate performance projects into
core content areas, field trips based on areas of study in the community, weekly arts (music
and atelier) electives, community service learning in all grades, mini-courses, and an emphasis
on presentation and performance skills to demonstrate learning. Teachers reported and site
visitors observed lessons and projects integrating painting, the water cycle, and geography;
learning about the American Revolution and immigration through musicals and plays; and
learning about chemistry and US history through role playing.

Development of strong foundational skills (KDE 3)

e Over the charter term, Hilltown has assessed students’ foundational skills annually through
lowa Test of Basic Skills in reading, language, and mathematics in grades 3 through 8. The
school’s 2018-19 Annual Report includes the national percentile rank of each grade level and
skill, and the school! defines high performance as at or above the 75" national percentile rank.
All grades scored above the 75™ percentile for reading. The majority of grade levels scored
below the 75™ percentile in language and mathematics.

e The school also administers internally created assessments in all grade levels. Based on the
school’s definition of proficiency (75 percent), the majority of students (over 73 percent) were
proficient in mathematics and writing in grades K through 8 and in reading in grades K
through 3.

e Hilltown is in the process of creating a comprehensive data-based system to effectively
identify all students’ strengths and needs for academic, behavioral, and social-emotional
development and developing a tiered support model that effectively addresses the strengths
and needs of all students. During the 2019-20 school year, the school adopted FastBridge to
better assess and monitor all students’ progress towards meeting proficiency goals. For more
information on the systems and structures Hilltown uses to assess and support students, see
Key Indicator 6.4: Supports for All Learners.

e During classroom observations, site visitors noted examples of supports for all learners in half
(7 out of 14) of classrooms. For more information on support for students in classrooms, see
Key Indicator 6.4: Supports for All Learners.

e Teachers reported students also develop organizational and presentation skills in all grades to
prepare them to present their culminating grade 8 research project. Teachers reported the
school focuses on developing students’ foundational organizational, reading, writing, and
presentation skills to ensure student are successful. Teachers and school leaders reported the
school is in the process of piloting or implementing new curricula in science, mathematics,
and reading to develop students’ foundational skills and increase curricular consistency across
classrooms and grade levels. The board also reported the multi-age classroom structure
enables teachers to introduce and develop foundational skills over a two-year period.

e In addition, the school develops students’ social and emotional skills through regular lessons
in all grades led by the school counselor. The speech and language pathologist also uses the
Social Thinking and the Zones of Regulation curricula to support students in grades K through
5 to develop their social and emotional skills.

High degree of family involvement (KDE 4)

e The school has a community and family engagement director who coordinates the school’s
efforts to involve families in a variety of ways. Through the school’s weekly newsletter,
families are invited to attend a variety of showcases and events, to volunteer or share their

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 7



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

knowledge in classrooms, or to donate needed items to the school. The newsletter also
includes a short synopsis of the most recent board meeting and a schedule of upcoming
board and committee meetings with an invitation for families to attend.

e Parent volunteers also maintain a physical family corner space with announcements, copies of
the board and committee minutes, and mailbox for each family. Of the 40 percent of parents
who responded to the parent satisfaction survey, all parents reported participating in at least
one meeting, event, classroom event, or all-school activity.

e Board members interviewed during the renewal inspection reported most board and
committee members are parents of Hilltown students. Board minutes show, and board
members reported, an emphasis on ensuring that at least one board members is present at all
community events to engage with families. As enrollment has increased, school leaders
reported focusing on ensuring all new families are connected to the school. Previously,
parents were required to volunteer four hours a month in exchange for voting rights.
However, the board of trustees changed this requirement in its bylaws to be inclusive of all
parents’ right to vote, regardless of their ability to volunteer.

Consensus based governance (KDE 5)

e Board members and school leaders reported the board uses a consensus model for
governance and all new board members are trained in this model. The school submitted a
flow chart to outline the steps to come to a consensus decision and board minutes show that
all decisions were made by consensus during the 2018-19 school year. The school’s 2018-19
Annual Report states school staff use elements of the consensus model, such as engaging in
open discussions and honoring all opinions, but do not fully utilize this model in decision-
making. For more information on the board’s decision-making process, see Criterion 9:
Governance.

Cultivation of children’s individual voices (KDE 6)

e The school encourages student voice through a variety of embedded structures across grade
levels. All students in grade 8 identify and design an independent culminating project and
present it to the school community and outside community members. The school also
provides opportunities for older students to engage in leadership roles with younger students
during weekly community time. Teachers also reported students frequently have choices
when selecting classroom projects and teachers tailor learning to student interests. in
addition, all students have weekly opportunities to present at all school meetings, to perform
during quarterly Il Teatro assemblies, and to present their learning and to participate in
morning meetings in their classrooms. In addition, the school’s Institutional Self-Evaluation
for Bias states the school piloted a school climate survey last year for that was administered
to students in grades 7 and 8 in addition to teachers and administrators. During the 2019-20
school year, Hilltown plans to administer an annual school climate survey to all students.

» Hilltown is in the process of adapting a schoolwide anti-bias and anti-racist framework. School
leaders and teachers reported the hope is to attract a more diverse student and staff
demographic and to ensure all students and staff feel they have a voice at the school. School
leaders and teachers shared how elements of this work cultivate student voice through
teachers learning to facilitate difficult conversations with students, integrating social justice,
equity, and privilege concepts into curricula in the upper grades, and implementing curricula

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 8



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

on perspective taking and social skills in the lower grades. The school is also working to
ensure that instructional materials reflect a greater diversity of identities.

Finding: Hilltown met a majority of the measures in its Accountability Plan.

e Hilltown’s approved Accountability Plan sets goals for the school’s current charter term and
includes 6 objectives and 11 related measures. Charter schools endeavor to meet the
Accountability Plan measures by the end of the charter term. Hilltown met 8 out of 11
measures. The school met the one measure related to community. The school met the one
measure related to parent involvement. The school met the one measure related to the board
using a consensus model for decision making. The school met two of four measures related to
developing strong foundational skills. The school met both measures related to students
demonstrating academic competency in an area of individual interest. The school met one of
two measures related to dissemination activities. Please see Appendix A: Accountability Plan
Performance for more details.

CRITERION 2: ACCESS AND EQUITY

The school ensures access and equity for all students eligible to attend the school. .~ Partially Meets

Finding: Hilltown provides information to the public regarding non-discriminatory enrollment practices
and the availability of special education programs English learners. The school provides few translated
materials for families whose first language is not English.

e The school has received approval for its Recruitment and Retention Plan for the 2019-20 school
year. The 2019-20 Recruitment and Retention Plan includes enhanced strategies to recruit
groups of students for which the school does not enroll a comparable population.

e The school provides sufficient information to the public regarding non-discriminatory
enrollment practices and the availability of specialized programs and services at the school to
meet the needs of students with disabilities and English learners. The school’s website describes
the programs available for students with disabilities and English learners and recruitment
materials confirm the school serves students who need these programs. The school’s website
and recruitment materials contain a non-discrimination statement.

e The school provides few translated materials for families whose first language is not English.
The school has recruitment materials in Spanish, and most sections of the school’s website can
be translated into multiple languages; however, accessing the school’s application for
enrollment requires creating an account, and not all of the steps to create an account are able
to be translated. The school did not provide examples of applications for enrollment translated
into other languages.

Finding: The school has been mostly successful in recruiting and retaining a demographically comparable
population®.

8 A school’s enroliment of a particular subgroup is determined to be comparable if the percentage is equal to or
greater than the Comparison Index, a figure derived from data of students who reside within the charter school’s

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 9



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

e Enrollment of students with disabilities was consistently above the Comparison Index in 2016 to
2019.

e The school did not enroll any English learners in 2016 to 2019 and was below gap narrowing
targets and the Comparison Index in 2016 to 2019.

e Enrollment of students in the economically disadvantaged group increased during the charter
term, exceeding gap narrowing targets in 2018 and 2019.

o Attrition rates® were above the third quartile in 2016 for all students and students in the high
needs group, but fell below the third quartile in 2017 through 2019.

e Stability rates'® were above the first quartile in 2016 to 2018 for all students and for students in
the high needs group.

o Please see Appendix B: Access and Equity and Profiles for more information.

In the tables below, percentages that meet Department expectations are highlighted in green, while
percentages that do not meet Department expectations are highlighted in red*.

Recruitment

Students with Disabilities (Percent Enrolled)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 171 16.5 18.8 18.9
Comparison Index 111 12.0 12.6 13.2
Gap Narrowing Target N/A N/A N/A N/A
English Language Learners (Percent Enrolled)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 0 0 0 0
Comparison Index 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6
Gap Narrowing Target 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3

sending district(s). The Comparison Index is explained in further detail in Appendix B: Access and Equity. Gap
narrowing targets are explained in further detail in Appendix A: Access and Equity.

9 Attrition rates are the percentage of attrition from the end of one school year to the beginning of the next school
year.

10 Stability rates measure how many students remain in a school throughout the school year.

11 with respect to recruitment, percentages at or above the Comparison Index or gap narrowing target are
highlighted in green; those below the gap narrowing target are highlighted in red. With respect to attrition,
percentages at or below the third quartile are highlighted in green; those above the third guartile are highlighted
in red. With respect to stability, percentages at or above the first quartile are highlighted in green; those below the
first quartile are highlighted in red.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 10



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School

Summary of Review

Economically Disadvantaged (Percent Enrolled)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 6.6 11.5 16.1 15.2
Comparison Index 19.9 22,4 23.8 235
Gap Narrowing Target 10.5 11.7 12.9 14.0

Retention

All Students (Percent Attrition)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 10.2 6.4 3.2 4.8
Median 7.3 6.8 6.5 6.8
Third Quartile 10.1 9.3 9.8 9.4
High Needs (Percent Attrition)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 19.1 8.7 5.7 2.1
Median 10.1 8.9 8.6 8.8
Third Quartile 13.9 124 12.2 13.8
All Students (Stability Rate Percentage)

2016 2017 2018
Hilltown 98.6 99.1 99.5
Median 94.8 95.8 95.7
First Quartile 93.1 93.2 93.6
High Needs (Stability Rate Percentage)

2016 2017 2018
Hilltown 98.2 100.0 100.0
Median 93.4 93.1 93.6
First Quartile 89.5 90.1 91.4

Finding: During the charter term, the school’s rates of in-school and out-of-school suspension were

consistently below the statewide average.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

Page 11



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

e During the charter term, the school suspended students at rates lower than the statewide
average. The school did not suspend any students during the charter term. In the table below,
percentages at or below the statewide average are highlighted in green.

In-School Suspension (Percentage)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown 0 0 0 0
Statewide Average 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.8
Out-of-School Suspension (Percéntage)

2016 2017 2018 2019
Hilltown (0] 0 0 0
Statewide Average 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0

e Discipline rates for student groups that are higher than the discipline rate for all students are
highlighted in red in the table below.

2018-19 Student Discipline Data Report?*?

Student Group Students Students Percent In- Percent Out- Percent
Disciplined School of-School Emergency

Suspension Suspension Removal

All Students 219 0

ELL 0

Disadvantaged 3 0

Dissblies % i

High Needs 68 0

Female 103 0

Male 115 0

American Indian or 0

Alaska Native

Asian 2

African American/Black 2

12 5ource: Profiles

13 Data in this report are suppressed (cells are blank) for a variety of reasons. More information about the data

may be found here.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

Page 12




Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Hispanic/Latino 10 0
IV!uItl-r-ace, I\!on- 57 0
Hispanic/Latino

Native Hawaiian or 0

Pacific Islander

White 178 0

CRITERION 3: COMPLIANCE

The school operates in compliance with the terms of its charter and applicable federal and state laws and
regulations regarding public charter schools.

Finding: Hilltown is in compliance with program requirements as determined by the Tiered Focused
Monitoring (TFM) and Coordinated Program Review (CPR) Reviews.

e The Office of Public School Monitoring conducted its most recent TFM visit to Hilltown in March
2019 and received a Tier 2 review. Tier 2 TFM reviews are self-directed based on low risk in
areas with close links to student outcomes. The outcome of the visit was no findings in special
education and five findings in civil rights. Hilltown addressed the findings by completing an
approved Continuous Improvement and Monitoring Plan.

e The Office of Public School Monitoring conducted its most recent English language education
CPR visit to Hilltown in January 2016. The outcome of the visit was no findings in English
language education.

Finding: Hilltown is out of compliance with state regulations regarding teacher qualifications.

e Per state regulations (603 CMR 1.06 (4)), all teachers beyond their first year of employment
must have taken and passed the Massachusetts Test for Educator Licensure (MTEL). As of the
date of the renewal inspection, 1 teacher (out of a total of 18) beyond the first year of
employment had not passed the required MTELs.

CRITERION 4: DISSEMINATION

The school provides innovative models for replication and best practices to other public

. Partially Meets
schools in the district where the charter school is located. v

Finding: During the charter term, Hilltown engaged in limited dissemination activities.

The school’s Application for Renewal and annual reports from the charter term indicate that Hilltown
engaged in limited dissemination activities during the charter term.

e During the 2018-19 school year, the school disseminated practices to local colleges and public
school districts regarding integrating art into curricula, using protocols to review student work
collaboratively to deepen thinking around teaching and learning, implementing structures that

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 13



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

support mixed age learning and community building, supporting future teachers through
internships and mentoring, and developing a professional learning community to improve
mathematics instruction.

e During the 2017-18 school year, the school shared resources on blizzard bags with schools in
Hampshire and Rye, New Hampshire; shared professional development around the school’s
Faculty and Curriculum Advancement program; and invited area public schools to a workshop on
supporting students with ADHD and executive functioning weaknesses.

e From 2015 to 2017, the school offered workshops related to school climate and family
engagement and curricula. The school reported there were no attendees for these workshops,
but one workshop on creating community was later presented at Smith College.

ACADEMIC PROGRAM SUCCESS

CRITERION 5: STUDENT PERFORMANCE

The school consistently makes progress in Not requiring
student academic achievement for all 2019 Overall Classification: assistance or
students as defined by the statewide intervention

accountability system.
Cumulative Progress Toward

0,
Improvement Targets: Sl

2019 Accountability Percentile: 62

Finding: Hilltown did not meet gap narrowing goals in 2016. In 2017, schools such as Hilltown that
administered the Next-Generation MCAS assessment in grades 3 through 8 were not assigned gap
narrowing goals. In 2018, Hilltown partially met targets for indicators included in the new statewide
accountability system. In 2019, Hilltown made substantial progress toward targets.

The purpose of the statewide accountability system is to provide clear, actionable information about
school performance. The accountability indicators used for each school depend on the grades served
and the assessments administered. Following is summary information for Hilltown for the years 2016 to
2019. A copy of the school’s overall results for 2019 along with detailed data for each indicator is
included in Appendix C: Student Performance. More detailed information related to student
performance is included in Profiles. Please note that in general, caution is required when making
comparisons across years when there were changes to the state accountability system. As a result of
significant changes to the state’s accountability system in 2018, comparisons between accountability
results from 2018 and 2019 and historical accountability data should not be made.

Accountability and Assistance Level/Overall Classification

Prior to 2018, all Massachusetts schools and districts with sufficient data were classified into one of five
accountability and assistance levels (1 to 5), with the highest performing in Level 1 and lowest
performing in Level 5. Beginning in 2018, all Massachusetts districts and schools with sufficient data
were classified into one of two accountability categories: districts and schools requiring assistance or
intervention, and districts and schools without required assistance or intervention.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 14



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Accountability and Assistance Level Overall Classification —[
2016 2017 2018 2019
Level 2: Not meeting gap | No Level: Students in this | Not requiring assistance Not requiring assistance
narrowing goals school participated in or intervention: Partially | orintervention:
2017 Next-Generation meeting targets Substantial progress
MCAS tests Progress Toward toward targets
Improvement Targets: Cumulative Progress
59% Toward Improvement

Targets: 57%

School Percentile/Accountability Percentile

Prior to 2018, a school percentile between 1 and 99 was reported for schools with at least four years of
data. This number is an indication of the school's overall performance relative to other schools that
serve the same or similar grades. School percentiles were not calculated for schools that administered
the Next Generation MCAS assessment in grades 3 through 8 in spring 2017.

School Percentile

2016 2017

87 4

Beginning in 2018, an accountability percentile between 1 and 99 was reported for most schools. This
number is an indication of the school's overall performance relative to other schools that administer
similar assessments, and is calculated using up to two years of data for all accountability indicators. The
2018 and 2019 accountability percentiles should not be compared to school percentiles calculated in
2016 and prior years because they represent different calculations.

Accountability Percentile

2018 2019

60 62

Next-Generation MCAS Tests

Next-Generation MCAS tests were given in English language arts and mathematics in grades 3 through 8
starting in 2017. Starting in 2019, Next-Generation MCAS tests were also given in science in grades 5 and
8 and in English language arts and mathematics in grade 10. Scaled scores range from 440 to 560.
Students meet expectations in the scaled score range of 500 to 529 and exceed expectations in the
scaled score range of 530 to 560.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 15



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Next-Generation MCAS Tests
2017 2018 2019
Percent of Percent of Percent of
t Student t
3 ud.ents Avg. Scaled 5 .en > Avg. Scaled 3 ud‘ents Avg. Scaled
Meeting or Meeting or Meeting or
= Score - Score = Score

Exceeding Exceeding Exceeding

Expectations Expectations Expectations
Grade and
Subject school | State | School | State | School | State | School | State | School | State | School | State
Grades 3-8
English 54 49 502.1 [ 499.0 60 51 504.0 | 500.5 66 52 504.4 | 501.2
Language Arts
Grades 3.8 51 48 | 5008 |298.8| 56 | 48 |501.6|4984| 55 | 49 |501.2 |499.2
Mathematics
Gr_adeS 68 49 | 504.9 | 498.9
Science
Gr.ade8 67 46 | 505.6 |498.2
Science

Composite Performance Index

The Composite Performance Index (CPI) is a 100-point index that serves as a measure of the extent to
which all students are progressing toward proficiency. When all students score Proficient or Advanced
on the legacy MCAS assessment, the CPI will be 100. The legacy MCAS assessment was administered for
the last time in 2018 in science in grades 5 and 8 and in English language arts and mathematics in grade
10.

Composite Performance Index

2016 2017 2018 2019
Grade and Subject School | State | School | State | School | State | School | State
Grade 5 Science and Tech/Eng 88.6 76.4 88.0 753 N 86.9 76.5
Grade 8 Science and Tech/Eng 88.1 71.3 92.0 70.6 70.3 68.3

Student Growth Percentile

The Department uses Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) to demonstrate progress in student
achievement each year. SGPs are generated based on student performance on statewide assessments,
including MCAS and/or PARCC in 2016 and the Next-Generation MCAS in 2017 through 2019. For
schools that took PARCC, transitional SGPs were calculated based on PARCC and prior MCAS scores. In
2018, DESE began including average SGP in all assessment and accountability reports instead of median
SGP. In general, SGPs in the range of 1 to 39 are associated with lower growth, SGPs in the range of 40
to 60 are associated with typical growth, and SGPs in the range of 61 to 99 are associated with higher
growth.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 16



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School

Summary of Review

Student Growth Percentile

MCAS Next-Generation MCAS
Median SGP Average SGP
Grade and Subject 2016 2017 2018 2019
Grades 3-8 English Language Arts 59.0 51.5 53.6 52.3
Grades 3-8 Mathematics 58.0 51.0 49.6 48.7

CRITERION 6: PROGRAM DELIVERY

The school delivers a high quality academic program that meets the needs of all students.

Key Indicator 6.2: Instruction

The school staff has a common understanding of high-guality instruction. Instructional practices are aligned to
this common understanding. Instructional practices are based on high expectations for all students and reflect
cultural proficiency. Instruction fosters student engagement. Classroom environments are conducive to

learning.

Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal inspection®:

Almost all classroom environments were conducive to learning.

o During the renewal inspection, the renewal inspection team observed 17 classrooms, 15 of
which were conducive to learning. In these classrooms, site visitors observed respectful
relationships and discourse between teachers and students, efficient and effective
redirections, well-organized classrooms with routines in place, physically and emotionally safe
environments, and teachers soliciting student input on resolving a classroom issue.

e Inthe two classrooms that were not conducive to learning, teachers did not redirect students
who were not meeting expectations. Site visitors observed students frequently interrupting
each other, a student swearing, and a disrespectful interaction between students.

1 The renewal inspection team gathered evidence related to a subset of the elements included in Key Indicator

6.2: Instruction.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

Page 17



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Key Indicator 6.4: Supports for All Learners

The school has a proactive system to effectively identify and address all students’ strengths and needs for
academic, behavioral, and social-emotional development through a tiered support model. Data and progress
monitoring are used to ensure that all students across all subgroups have equal access and equitable support,
interventions, and resources to achieve, grow, and advance. The school regularly uses data to evaluate and
modify its support programming to ensure student success.

Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal inspection:

The school is in the process of creating a comprehensive data-based system to effectively identify all
students’ strengths and needs for academic and social-emotional development.

e Hilltown uses the lowa Test of Basic Skills annually to assess the reading, mathematics, and
language skills of students in grades 3 through 8, Fountas and Pinnell benchmark assessments
to assess the reading skills of students in grades K through 3, and internally created writing
and mathematics assessments for all students. School leaders reported they disaggregate this
screening data by a variety of subgroups, such as ethnicity, gender, and disability.

e School leaders and teachers reported, and documents confirm, the school began using the
FastBridge screeners with students in grade 6 during the 2019-20 school year to assess
performance in reading, mathematics, and social-emotional skills. FastBridge assessments will
be expanded to include all students during the 2020-21 school year.

The school is working to develop and document a tiered support model that effectively addresses the
strengths and needs of all students.

e According to documents and school leader and teacher focus groups, the school is continuing
to develop a Response to Intervention (RTI) process for addressing the needs of all students.
School leaders and teachers reported the school’s RTI process is still in development.
Teachers reported Hilltown received support as a Model Demonstration School*® during 2016-
17 and 2017-18 school years and has also worked with a few consultants over the charter
term to develop a system to support all students. Teachers reported, and board minutes
show, that this is an area of growth for the school since the process is not understood by all
stakeholders. However, teachers reported there has been more progress towards developing
the RTI process this year. Teachers added that the FastBridge data will enable the school to
create more measurable goals for students and to assess progress towards meeting those
goals at multiple points throughout the year.

e School leaders reported the director of teaching and learning and the director of student
supports are developing a structure to clarify the RTI process for students in need of support.
School leaders described a process that is not yet fully developed and only one teacher could
describe the RTI process during the interview. The school submitted documents that describe
some aspects of the RTI process, including information about supports and interventions the
school provides and who is included in the RTI team. However, these documents did not
include information about the process of how the school uses data to support students,
information about how the school implements its tiered intervention system, or a description

15 As part of the MA Charter School Collaborative Access Network with a goal of supporting charter schools in achieving
enhanced student outcomes.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 18



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

of the process for referring a student for special education services, outside of a parent
request.

e The school submitted documents that outline potential supports and interventions the school
may consider to help students, although the process for deciding on Tier 2 and Tier 3 supports
and assessing if the implemented supports are successful is unclear and not documented. Tier
1 supports include small group instruction, behavioral expectations identified and taught,
reference materials on classroom walls, and student support personnel teaching lessons
related to social and emotional learning for all students. Tier 2 supports available to students
include small group instruction, before or after school support, social pragmatics groups, and
quiet lunches. Tier 3 supports available to students may include 1:1 aides or special education
services.

e During classroom observations, site visitors noted examples of supports for all learners in half
(7 out of 14) of classrooms. The team observed examples of multiple teachers supporting
students, teachers working with small groups and individuals, and teachers circulating to
check in with students. Site visitors also noted examples of modified work, differentiated
seating, repetition of directions by teachers and students, kinesthetic learning, and reference
materials for students.

e In7 of 14 classrooms, where instructional practices did not support all learners, site visitors
observed little to no differentiation of student work and unclear roles for additional staff.

e Resources available to students include additional staff members in classrooms, counseling
services, support groups, occupational therapy, speech, behaviorist services, and access to a
school nurse. The school also has access to mathematics, reading, and writing curricula,
audiobooks, dictation software, text-to-speech software, Google classrooms, laptops, and
iPads. Teachers also receive professional development in trauma-informed teaching and
Universal Design for Learning.

The school uses data to evaluate and modify its support programming to increase student success.

e The school submitted a special education self-evaluation based on the 2017-18 school year.
The evaluation is aligned to Department guidance. The self-reflection identified areas of
concern based on the 2018 MCAS results and how the school plans to address those concerns
for the 2018-19 school! year. The school also reviewed special education referral data and a
needs assessment from the special education parent advisory council (SEPAC) in 2017 and
reported how the school plans to address concerns for the 2017-18 school year.

e The school identified lower growth in some grade levels and content areas based on student
growth percentiles of students with disabilities (SWD) relative to their general education
peers. The difference in scores between SWD and general education students was observed in
grade 5 English language arts (ELA) and in grade 7 mathematics and ELA.

s Based on these results, the self-evaluation stated the school will conduct the following during
the 2019-20 school year: secure an external reviewer to conduct a needs assessment related
to the school’s multi-tiered system of supports, adopt a universal screener for math, reading,
and social-emotional behavior, include a greater amount of data related to tiered
interventions and how to assess progress with interventions, review program areas related to
writing in younger grades and social-emotional learning in all grades, monitor referral data
based on new universal screening tool, share information with parents about the school’s RT!
process, conduct workshops for staff and parents on ADHD, executive functioning, resiliency
and anxiety, hold transition meetings for parents of students in transitioning to grade 6, and
vary SEPAC meeting nights and offer child care.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 19



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

e The school did not enroll any English learners over the charter term; therefore, an English
learner program self-evaluation is not required.

ORGANIZATIONAL VIABILITY

CRITERION 9: GOVERNANCE

Members of the board of trustees uphold their responsibilities under Massachusetts law
and regulations to act as public agents authorized by the state and provide competent ® Meets
and appropriate governance to ensure the success and sustainability of the school.

Finding: Throughout the charter term, members of the Hilltown board have been active and involved in
their roles as public agents, providing competent and appropriate governance and oversight of the
school.

e During a visit in Year 22 and during the renewal inspection, site visitors found evidence of board
members being actively engaged in fulfilling their legal responsibilities and obligations to the
school. The board meets regularly and has several active committees.

e During a visit in Year 22 and during the renewal inspection, site visitors found evidence of board
members providing competent and appropriate governance and oversight of the charter
school’s administration, financial health, and progress towards meeting academic and other
school goals. During the charter term, the board hired a new director of administration and a
new director of teaching and learning and used a collaborative hiring process that involved a
variety of school stakeholders. The board also reported they met the goals of the current
strategic plan and are in the process of assembling a committee to start creating a new strategic
plan.

Evidence gathered and reviewed as part of the renewal inspection:
The board of trustees fulfills its legal and fiduciary responsibility to the school.

e The board currently has 9 members, within the range of 7 to 15 members permitted by the
board’s bylaws.

e Board meeting minutes indicate that current board officers include a president, vice-
president, treasurer, and clerk, as required by the bylaws.

e Board meeting minutes indicate that the board has four active committees: governance and
board sustainability, finance, facilities, and personnel.

e Board bylaws require the board to meet at least quarterly in addition to holding an annual
meeting in the spring. Board meeting minutes for the period July 2018 to July 2019 indicate
the board met thirteen times, including an annual meeting.

e Board meeting minutes and committee meeting minutes consistently include the date and
time of the meeting, board members present and absent, a record of decisions made and
actions taken at each meeting, a summary of the discussion of each subject, and a list of
documents and other exhibits used, all requirements of Open Meeting Law (OML). Board and
committee meeting minutes do not consistently provide the location of the meeting.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 20



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

e Board meeting minutes include evidence that the board approved appropriate school
documents and policies, including the school calendar, staff salaries, health care, workers’
compensation, and maternity leave.

e The board demonstrates oversight of the school’s progress towards meeting academic goals
and alignment with the mission primarily through the reports it receives from the director of
teaching and learning at board meetings. The director of teaching and learning shares
academic performance data and student indicator data. Board meeting minutes indicate the
board reviews disaggregated data by subgroups such as race, gender, and students with
disabilities.

e Board meeting minutes include evidence that the board conducted and approved an
evaluation of the school’s director of administration and the director of teaching and learning
during the 2018-19 school year. The director of community and family engagement did not
receive an evaluation during the 2018-19 school year. School leaders reported this process
included goal setting, receiving feedback from committee chairs, and a review of survey
information. Board members also reported that the president and vice president of the board
conduct interviews with the directors, staff who report to the directors, and parents. Board
meeting minutes indicate, and school leaders reported, surveys were also sent to the board of
trustees, committees, and school staff to assess the school leaders’ performance. The
president and vice-president of the board shared a written report to the board based on
evidence for approval. Board meeting minutes showed, and board members reported, they
are working to differentiate full-scale evaluations and smaller-scale evaluations and the
evaluation schedule for the school’s three directors.

e Board meeting minutes indicate the board engages in governance tasks rather than
management of day-to-day operations at the school.

e The board oversees the school’s financial health with the support of the finance committee.
The finance committee reports to the board at every meeting and provides quarterly financial
reports. Board meeting minutes include evidence of discussions related to the school’s
finances, as well as evidence that the board reviewed the FY20 school budget.

The board of trustees fosters a culture of collaboration.

e Board meeting minutes include evidence that the board seeks and frequently receives input
from school stakeholders, including staff and families. For more information on how the
board collaborates with families, see Criterion 1: Mission and Key Design Elements above.

e Board meeting minutes include a record of decisions made and actions taken by the board.
Board meeting minutes also include evidence that the board uses a consensus process for
deliberation, both in committee meetings and in meetings of the full board, prior to making
decisions.

¢ Board meeting minutes include evidence that meetings foster open, deliberate, and thorough
discussions. As required by OML, meeting minutes include a summary of the discussions of
each subject.

The board of trustees engages in strategic and continuous improving planning.

e Board members reported their current strategic plan for 2013 to 2023 has been accomplished
and that they and are in the initial stages of developing a sub-committee to create a new
strategic plan. Board members identified a few priorities that may be incorporated in the

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 21



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

plan, including increasing the diversity of students and staff and maintaining the school
building.

e The board has an informal succession plan for board members. Board members reported they
are working to develop a more established and consistent process for succession of board
leadership. Currently, the typical progression is a member of the governance committee
becomes the vice president and then the president.

e The board has a succession plan for school leaders. The board hired a new director of
administration in 2017. The board created a hiring committee, advertised the position, and
conducted interviews, which included parents and teachers who also made recommendations
to the hiring committee. The board reported they made changes to increase the transparency
of this process and formalized aspects of the selection process, including identifying a hiring
committee to lead the hiring process and explicitly outlining next steps if there are no viable
candidates.

e Board members described processes for recruiting, selecting, and training new members.
Prospective members first join a committee to learn more about the board. Interested
candidates are then interviewed and approved at the board’s annual meeting. After the vote,
new members begin the school’s onboarding process.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 22



¢z 28ed uolleanp3 Alepuodas pue Aleiuswa|3 Jo Juawiiedaq $119SNYILSSeIA

‘UB4P|IY3 1343 JO U01IBINP3 B3 U] S13ulied Se suelpiend/siualed aA|OAUL [|IM UMOY||IH :3AID3(G0

‘ASains ayi ul paledidiied
S3l|lWey 4O %05 "AHuNWWwod 1noge suonsanb
03 Ajaanisod papuodsal saljiwey J0 %/6 19T-ST0T

‘AaAJns ayy ul payedioijed
Ssaljlwey 0 %z ‘Alunwwod 1noge suolsanb
03} A|A13isod papuodsal salfilue) 4O %56 (LT-9T0T

‘ASAJns ay1 919|dwWOoD ||IM Saljluie) 1O %0¥ 1Se3| 1Y "Saljiue) pue
‘13€3s ‘syuapnis Suowe AJuNWWOod JO 3suas 3U0.lS B S1SIXd 34aY3 1eU3 1odau
[IIM ASAINS UOIIIRYSIIBS [ENUUE BY3 01 pUOdSal OYM S31[ILIe) O %06 :2INSEdN

‘A3nins ay3 uy pajedidiied
sal|lwey 40 % e "Alunwwod Jnoge suoiissnb | N N N
01 AjpAjysod papuodsad sa||Iwey 4O %06 :8T-LT0C

‘AaAuns ay1 uy paredioinied
saljlwey JO %0 “Alunwwod Inoge suonsanb
03 Ajaniisod papuodsad sal(iey) 10 %E6 6T-810T

"LUJ93 Ja3eyd siyl siesh unoj ||e aunseaw
SIy} 39w |ooyas ay3 ‘syiodad [enuue pue [emausy
Jo} uonedl|ddy s jooyas ay3 01 3uIpJoY

‘s31jILWey PUEB ‘Je]s ‘S3UBpNIs Suowe ALUNWWIOD JO 3SUBS BUOJIS B 3JBAIYND ||IM UMOI|[IH :3A1393[q0

p Jeap
€ JB9A
T Jedp
T JB3A

(33IA 10N) N
(1)
dueWIopad
W] Jauey)

2JU3PING

194ey) o3 ssaujnjyliey

IINVINHO4H3d NY1d ALITIEVINNODIIY V¥ XIANIddY

M3IADY JO Alewwng
[o0YDS 21|qnd 491 EeYD 3A11eId00D UMOI||IH



17 23ed

uoleanpy Alepuodas pue AJejuawa|l o Juswiiedaq suasnydesseip|

Ul pa.02s g apeJ3d {|e101 9102 pue ‘yiew ‘Bupeal
ul 9|134enb doj ay3 ul paJods G apeus /|ej01

2405 pue s323[gns ||e ul 3|114enb dol ayj ul paiods
¥ apeus ‘|e10) 2100 pue ‘e8en3ue| ‘Sujpead ul

3|11 4enb dol ay3 ul paJods £ pue ¢ spelts :8T-LT0T
‘|e301 3400 pue ‘a8endue| ‘Buipesl

ul 9)i314enb dol ay3 Ul paiods / speJd /|e101 8102
pue ‘yiew ‘SBuipea.u u) 3ji3uenb dol ay3 ul paioos

‘S|INS d1sed

S 3peJ3 {[e303 2100 pue Suipeal Ul ajenb doy WN | WN | AN | AN 10153] emo| @yl uo |10 210D pue ‘93en3due| ‘Yiew ‘Buipead Jo seale palsal
33 U1 pa10s g pue p sapeJs ‘Sulpeal u; ajnJenb ay1 ul Ajlenuue ay114enb dol ay) Ul 94035 ||Im ‘g-€ ‘spedd yoe3 :ainsesan
dol 8y} Ul paJods g pue € sepeJs :6T-8T0C
‘seaJe PI)sa) ||e J0U INQG SWOsS
ul 91uenb doj ay1 ul paJods apesd yiel "wJiay
Ja14eYD S1Yy1 sueah ay] Jo Aue aunseaws Syl 199W
10U pIp |o0OY2s ay3 ‘spodad |enuue pue [emaudy
Joj uopealddy s,jooyas ay3 o031 Suipioddy
's||13s |euoizepunoy SuoJls dojaAIp ||IM S1uBpnis :3AIRdRIq0
‘W43 J934BYI 31 JO SIedA UN0oJ B3Y)
“Jauuew
J3A0 sa1nulw Suildsw pieoq Y3noayl painsesw
A[aW1 e Ul paydeaL ag J0UUED SNSUBSUOD Ji UdXE] 3q A{UO ||Im $310A AjIo[eIN
SE WU} Jo1leyd siyl sieah unoy jje aunseaw | A W N W

SIY1 J9W |00YIs 3U) ‘S1iodal [enuue pue [eMaudy
104 uojieal|ddy s,|ooyds ay3 03 Suipioddy

*S3INUIW PJBOg Ul PS1LJIPUL SB 3WIL 31 JO %06 1583| 1B Suijew uolsidsp Jo
[3pOW SNSUBSUOD B 3UISh apew aq [|Im SUOIS|Iap Sa91snJ | JO pleogq :ainsean

juanbasqgns Aue pue uoledldde Joeyd ay) ul pauly

ap se ain3onJ3s diysiapea| pue aueuIdA0d ay) syuswa|dwi s315NJ3 JO pJeOg SdIIJH dYL :8A1393[q0

‘(s)auswpuawe paaoidde

%L6 :9T-S10¢
%00T :£1-910¢
%00T :8T-L10¢

%00T :61-810¢

"W481 JOMEYD SIY3 S4e3A UNoJ JO 93.4Y] sinsesw
SIY1 39W |ooYyds 3y} ‘s1iodad [enuue pue [emaudy
Joj uonedyddy s, jooyds ey 01 3ulpioddy

"SLWIO0JSSED 31 Ul S3IHIAII0R ay3 Ul uotieddinied Jo/pue ‘s3uliesw Allunwwod
ur uonnediied ‘saun1oniis Sululsaos paseq snsussuod s ul diysisquisw
ySnoay3 jooyas ay3 ui panjoaul AjaA[IIR 34 ||IM S3l|IWES JO %00T :34NsSean

M3IA3Y o Alewwing
|00YDS 21jgnd Ja34ey) dA1esadoo) umol(jiH



Gz @3ed

uoljeanp3 Alepuodas pue Alejuswa|q 40 Juswiiedaq s1asnYIesse

‘[3a9] Aduaidiyoud paujwisisp

-34d 3y1 u1 paJods oym sjuapnis Jo sadejuadiad
ay3 juasazdal siaquinu Suimoj||oy ayL

“LJ3} Jo3JBYD SIY3 SJeaA Unoj JO OM) sunsesw
SIYl 12W |ooyds ay] ‘syiodad |enuue pue [emauay
Joj uoneoyddy s,|ooyds ay3 o3 Suipioddy

AN

AN

"yiews pue Suim SdJJH Y1 uo |aas| Aduaipijoud
paujW.a1ap-a1d 3y} Ul 94035 ||IM 8- SOPEJS U] SIUBPNIS || JO %08 :BNSEdN

%G8 BUIIM ‘%96 Y1BIA ‘%58 Bulpeay :9T-5T0T
%18 BUlLIM ‘%00T YIBIA ‘%¥6 Sulpesy :£T-9T0C
%8 BULM %66 UIBIN ‘%08 3ulpesy :8T-£102
%SL BUNLIM ‘%S6 YIBIN ‘%EL BuIpeay :6T-8T0¢C
"SJUDWISSISSE 3SBY] JO YIBD UO |9A3)|

2UO 31sed| 1k pauled oym sjuapnis Jo sadejusdiad
ay3 Juasaudal susquinu 3uimo||o) sy

‘W93 JaueYD Siy) SJeaA unoy Jo 934yl ainsesw
SIY3 33w [00YDSs By} ‘s30dal |enuue pue [emausy
Jo4 uonediddy s,|ooyds ay3 03 Sutpioddy

AN

“JUBWISSISSE
yiew pue Sunlim ‘uipeas SdIDH Yl Uo [aA3] paulyap Ajsnolasud
2uo 1583 1e uled Ajjenuue ||Im g€-) S3PRIF Ul SJU3PNIS ||B JO %0  3INSEIIA|

‘|an9| Sulpead speJs yxis 1e Suipeal
aJe sjuapns 1eyl Sulzealpul ‘6107 03 STOC Wo.
Buipeas u] §°9 pue T'9 UsaMla( P340IS SIUBPNIS

"WwJ9) JaHeYD S1Y) s1eah unoy e sunsesw
S1Y3 19W |ooyds 8y ‘syuodad [enuue pue [emausy
Joj uonea|(ddy s,|ooyas ayy 031 Sulpioddy

‘S||)S J1seg JO 1S2| BMO| 3y} uo Buipeal jo
eale 3] Ul [9A3] 2petS aA0ge JO 1B 1531 ||IM SIBpeJd Uiy || 4O %06 :ainsealn

‘Suipesaus ul g speJs pue {|e101 8102

pue yiew ‘Buipead ui 3jienb dol syl uf palods g
apeJ3 {|e103 2102 pue seaJe 123[gns ||e ul 9p11uenb
dol 2y Ul paJods g pue ‘2 ‘y ‘€ apedn :9T-ST0T
*|e103 9402 pue ‘@8en3due|

‘Buipead ul 3j134enb doy ayy ui psuods £ ‘g

apeJs pue {|e103 2403 pue s1a3[gns |e ul 9p114enb
dol ay3 u| pa403s g pue ‘g ‘¢ spesd ‘Suipea.

ul 3|14enb doj ay3 uj pa10ods ¢ apet i/ T1-9T0T

"|e301 3102 Jo s1a3{qns Aue ul 3|1uenb doj uj 31025
10U pip 8 9pedd pue ‘Buipeal u) 3|1uenb doi syl

M3IABY Jo Aewwng
|00Y2s 21|gnd Ja1ey) aAlleladoo) umol|jiH



9z 23ed uoneanp3 Alepuodass pue Asejuawa|l Jo Juswliedaq s13asnydessep

paJajjo sdoysiiom € :6T0Z-8T0T
‘S4aqUIBW ALUNWILIOD Pa)sSa4alu) pue ‘siualed ‘siaydeay

SRS IERR m_f.m._mm> 4N04 4O 334y aInseaw | un | AN | AN | WIN 01 P2J340 3q |jIm swesSoud "uBiSap |00YIS JO WN|NJLIND Jo 133dse oydads
SIY1 33U J00YIS By} ‘$1I0d3l [eNUUE PUE |EMIUY e Suljieap sweadoad jooyas Jalje A|Yluow IS0y [|Im [00YIS 3Y] :3nsealp
Joj uoyea||ddy s,|ooyds ay3 031 Suipiodoy

"S3I}|UNLIWIOD [BUOIIEINPE |EJ0| 343 YIIM Sa0130eid 15aq aleys |[IM UMol||IH :2A1323lq0

=< = =< =<
) © ) )
1] o] Q Y]
= - = =
B w N R
(3211 30N) NN
E 9
S2Usping Au. 5_: W
2ouewiolod
wia | 1334ey)
uoneulwassiq
‘21iqnJ 193foud au3 uo 24025 Buissed
e panalyde syuapnis g apeud Jo qualiad QQT ‘4esA SRS (odd SUETTS
4oB3 "LLIS} JBLBLD SIY3 sieak anoj || ainseaut | N i & i apeJo ay3 uo 3403s Buissed B dA3IYIE [|im SIUBPNIS 35341 JO %00T :34nSean
SIY1 39W |ooYyds 3y ‘suiodau [enuue pue [emausy B:2RFIDEY ) I 1L P S1280 PLOORS;
Joj uonedyddy s,|ooyds ay3 o3 Suiploddy
3loid s "9oualiadxe 9y} wouy pauses
pale|dwod syuapnis g apedd Jo uadiad QoT ‘4eal , ; : S iy 4P !
S||is uolleluasald pue ‘Suilum ‘Youeasad 31e41SUOWIBP |[IM SIYL 1S2431ul
yoe3 'WJa1 Ja1eyd siyl siesh unoj e aunseaw | A W N W
kK J0 eaJe [euostad e uy 1oafoud Suineuiwind Aeuyjdiasipaaiul Juspuadapul
SIY3 JoW |ooyds ay1 ‘syiodal |enuue pue [emausy ,
ue JuasaJd pue ‘dojanap ‘uBisap ||Im JUSPNIS 8 BpeID YIe] :34nsean

Joj uonea)jddy s,jooyas ayy 031 SulpJoIdy

"152421U] [BNPIAIPUL O BaJE Ue Ul Aoua)aduiod JjWwapede )e4]SUoWap ||IM S91ENPEIS UMO)||IH :3ARI3[q0

%t/ SUIMIA ‘%T6 YleIN :9T-STOT
%9/ SULLIM ‘%T6 YIBIN :LT-9T0T
%T8 BUIMIM (%G8 YIBeIN 18T-LT0T
%S6 SUIMIM %5" 78 YIBIN :6T-8TOT

M3IAIY J0 Alewwung
J00YdS 21|gnd Ja1ey) aAesadoo) umol|(IiH



1z 28ed

uoeanp3 Alepuodas pue Aiejuawid|3 Jo Juswiiedaq s13asnydessen

'sJaydea) Sululesy Joy

weJSoud [ppow e dojpAap 03 989)|0D Ylws pue
) OA|OH IUNOIA Yim pataulied jooyas ayi ‘Aedh
yoeJ 'wua3 193eyd siyl s1eah unoy ||e aunseaw
SIU3 19W jooyds 8y ‘syiodad [enuue pue [emausy
Joj uonediddy s,|ooyas ay3 o031 3uiploddy

‘s4ayoess ululely Jo) weadoud jspow e dojanap
01 AJISJ2A1UN JO 283}|02 BBJE UB YYM JBulIed ||IM [00YIS Y] :2INSealn

‘pa43440 J0U a1am sdoysylom
PUE S3131]198} PSAOW [00Y2S YL :9TOTZ-STOT

padJayo sdoysyiom v :/T0Z-9T0C

paJajo mn_Or_mv_LO\S ¢ ‘810¢-LT10¢C

M3IARY JO Alewwing
|O0Y2S 21|qnd Ja1iey) aaled2doo) umol||iH



g7 98ed uoI1eaNp3 Alepuodas pue Alejuawaj] 40 Juswiiedsq s1189snyYdessen

"uoiduny 311L4VN0

5,[99%3 1JOSOIDIA SUISN PSALI3P SISIY] "S|00YDS UOSLIEdWO) |[B JO UBIPSW 9y} PUB J2GUINU 1S3]|BLUS 341 US3MID] J3GUUNU I[PPIW 3Y3 S| 3j11Jenb 15114 9y ¢
‘U0132UNY NYIAIIA 5,]99X3 H0S0La1A BUISh PaALI3P S| SIYL *$|00Y2s Uosiiedwod ||e 40 dnjeA Jujodpiw Y| ¢

‘As0891e0 , padejuenpesiqg A|E21LIOUODT, SY) INOGE UOIIEWI0jU] Jueliodwi Jo) TIUIY"Pa/eIep/Sa3IAISSOJUI/NPS SSEW S0P MMM//Td1Y

295 95834 'sJeah Joud uj elep ,aWOodU-MOoT, 01 paJedwiod A3daJlp 99 JoUued SU3pnIs , padejueapesip A[|eJIWou0dd,,

10} B1BP JUDWSABIYIE pue sa3ejusd4ad JUSW||0IUS 18y} PUBISISPUN 0 B1ED SIY] JO SI3SN J0j Juepiodw) s| 1| "13t|4es pue yT0Z-£T0T Ul Pasn saltodajed young
psonpay, pue ,yauniaald, ,‘dwodul-moT, ay3 Suoeldal ‘pariodal Buiaq si padeiuenpesiq Ajjedjwouod3, A1o3a1ed U3 Yolym Joy Jedh 3sily 34y s STOZ-¥T0T 4
"S1UDPN1S JO UOIIIIIIE [BNUUE 3y} pue ‘Alessadau se ue|d s3l paoueyus

Sey |00Y2s 3y} JayIaym “sdnodgns paiasie) Ul SJUSPNIS UIRID] PUE NI 03 sa18a1e1s D1410ads ‘91elaq)ap UIsh Ag Ue|d UOIIUB1a) PUE JUBWIINIDSL S| PamO]|o}
SBY |00YDS BU3 Y2Iym 03 JUDIXS B3 JAPISUOD ISNW pieog aY) PUE JBUOISSIWILOD 3Y] ‘[BMBUDL J33Ieyd uo Sulptodp usym "Ajjenuue pajepdn pue uo papiodal

8q 03 ue|d UO[IUBIBI PUE JUBWIINIIRI B 104 |eAosdde Juswiiedaq aA1803d 0 palinbad ale sjooyds Ja1ey) "ZT0Z-TTOT Ul sue|d uoi3ualal pue JUsWHNIO3Y
juawa|dwi 03 paJinbal 15414 819M S|00YdS J31eyd ‘Uolie|ndaJ Ul paoads se pue ‘gTOZ Ul PaYSI[GRISS 2J9M 7 UOLRID 03 pale|al suoisiradd AJoiniels maN g

‘sjooyas uostiedwod ||e jo a8ejuadiad JUBW|[04UB o B[1eNb 1Siiy Byl 104 Bul| aHuRL0 ¥lvp pajlop e e
paniope e
‘a8eJane 10141SIp UosIledWwOD BYy1 4O} dul| dN|q pijos e e

‘sjooyas uosiedwon ||e jo 98e1uddJad JUSWI|0IUS 4 URIPIW 33 404 BUl|

‘o8esone apIMalels QY JO) SUl| uSzIE plloS B e
‘looyas J1aieyd ay3 ul Juswjjoiua dnos3qgns Suijuasaidal aul| yae|q pjog pljose e
:yum ‘waoy ydeas aui| ul sieaA s|dinjnw ssouoe
AjleuipniiSuo| pakedsip aJe paisi| elep ‘djqe[leAr §| "sieaA aAl) Jusda1 1SOW 3y} BULINP S|O0YIS JO 39S 4O |0OYIS UBAIS B JOf JUSWI||0IUD |00YIS

|e103 Jo a8ejuadiad ay) syuasaldas ydeds ay3 uo aul) yoed 'SalIIESIP Y1IM SIUIpNIs pue ¢, padejueApesip Aj|eajuouods/ awodul mo| ‘ysi|su3
10u @8ensue) 1541 ‘siaulea| a8ensue| ysiSu3 :s3uapnis 40 sdnoaSqns JuaJayylp Jnoy Joj sedejuadiad Jusujjosud uosuedwod apirold syded ay L

INIWTI0YNI 1N3ANLS

-(Npa-sseWa0p Sa]joId//:d1y) S3|1404d [00YDS pue 1911sId 3SIQ WOy paALISp aJe sydeud asayy ul pahedsip elep j|y |00Y3s Jalieyd ayy

Ag panias s|an3| apeJd 3yl yim sdeJano Jey3 s3UapNIs JO [9A3] Spess aUo 15es| 38 SAIDS 1Y) UOIZRI §,|00YIS J334eYD B3 Ul S|00Yds dljgnd 3y} jo

1B 3PN|2UI YoIym ‘S|0oYyds uosiiedwiod 10y pue |00Yyds J93JeYD dY1 Joj paAe|dSIp S| UOIIBWIOLU| "o;5304D UOIIUDIAL PUB JUSWLINIIAL §,|00YIs J31ieyd
3y} 104 1X21U02 apIAcId 03 PAPUIIUI DJE SI03EDIPUI JUBPNIS PUB JUSW||0IUD JUSPN3S 4O sydesd ay3 ul pajuasa.d elep uostedwod [eulpniduo| ayL

ALIND3 ANV SSIDIV :4 XIANIddY

M3INJY JO Alewwng
[00Yas 2l|and Jeney) aallesadoo) Umol|jiH



62 28ed uoeonp3 Alepuodas pue AJeluswa|l Jo Juawiiedaq s119SNYIESSeIA|

"IND |enuuy = sJeah g / [z / (sulleseg — xapu| uosiiedwo))] :pasn s| uolienba SuIMo||0) 8yl ‘JU3WaIdul SIY3 SUlWISISp 0] “Ajlenuue BW aq Isnw

9SE3JOU| [PIUSWAIOUI UB ‘| ND S} 193W 03 9|NP3YIS U0 2¢ 0} |00YdS B 104 '0S Op 01 S4edA XIS |ooyds ay3 uiniS (TT-0TOC 4914 S! auljaseq JI JeaA Jaje| e ul 4o) Jeah
[00Y2s /T-9T0C Y1 Aq 1ujod Aemyjey siyl 199w o3 s1 193(qo ay] *(,1284e1, Y1) xapu} uosuedwo) Jualund syl pue (‘TT-0TQZ J91e 4l P2129||0 S| B1Ep JUSW||0JUS
JeaA 15413 8Y3 40 Je3A |00YdS TT-0TOT 243 Ul 3184 3Yl S| YdIYM) 31BJ 3UI[9SE( S,|00YdS 31 Usamiag julod Aemyley ayl 03 sua)aJ (LND) 1981e] SuimouleN deg ay] ,,
"|o0Yds J91EBLD BY1 YHM UOWWOD U] S[2A3| Bpesd 3soyl Ajuo ulyiim sdnoa3gns 1uapnis jo 3duajeaald |enide ays

pue 3zIs §,00YIs J31Jey2 3yl JUNOIIE 01Ul SSXE] 1eY] 3Nseaw uosliedwod J11s1jeas 240w pue JaJlej e 2onpoud 0] paudisap anjeA paje|nd|ed Aj|ed(3SIIe]S B S| Xapu|
uostiedwod ay| *(s)30141s1p UIPUIS S,|00YDS ISIIRYD B3I UIYIIM SPISSI OYM SIUSPNIS JO BIEP WO} paAlIap a1nBi) uosiiedwod e sapiaocid xapul uosuedwod ay| ,,

"|ooyas ay3 Ja3ua Aew sjuspnis Yaiym Ul sepessd syl Jiwi| 03 patiiwaad
9.Je pue syuspnis 3uipuaiie Ajualina jo s3uljqls 03 JuswW||oluad ul @susJasald SAIS 1SNW |00YDS Ja1JEYD S1I0LIS UOIIUS1aJ PUR JUaW1INIdal 109|j8l
Aj21eIpawuwi J0u (1M ‘a1e82488e ay3 ul Ajue|nditied ‘jooyas Ja3Jeyd e Jo4 solydesSowap Juspnis 18yl 910U 03 Juepodwl s ‘Ajjeutd ‘ssuewdoiad
pue ‘quawade|d ‘UoI1eJIIIUBPI UOIIEINPD |B123dS 4O} PR3P JoIARYD( ID141SIP ‘SO13S1M810EIRYD D1ydelSowap Je(lwis YIM SID1ISIP SSoUde ‘Jayling

"S3U3PN1S SWOIUI-MO|-UOU Uey] sa1keJ 1aydiy A|BiuelSgnsS 18 SITIAIIS Uo|1edNPS |eldads 404 5|q131|9 SE PaIHIUBPI SJ9M SIUSPNIS SWOIUI-MO]

1Byl punoy (#T0z 1sn8ny) 1oday SISaYluAS v 1S119SNYJBSSEIA] 4O Y3 |ESMUOWIWOD 343 Ul Uoj1eanp3 |eloads JO MalAsY) $81eID0SSY pue (uolieanpl

}0 |00YydS 31eNpel piealeH) JIYsH sewoy] “ig Ag YdJessad se ‘elep JudWi||0Jua uo1eanps |efdads 40} pasn 3g pinoys uoiined 31410ads "aAlss

Aay1 1ey3 uoidaus 4o Ajijedidiunw SyY3 UIYIIM SAI| 1BY3 SIUSPNIS || 1dadde 3snwl s|jooyds orgnd [euollipedy 'siuapnis Sunliwpe uaym ssasoud Ausi1iof
e asn 01 me| Ag pasinbaJ aJe sfooyds uanieyd ‘Jejndiped U] 'S|O0YIS J814eYD Ul STUSPNIS JO JUBW||0JUD WOoJ) Ajjuesijudis siayp sjooyds aignd
Jeuo|1IpeJ] uj SJUSPNIS JO JUSW||0JuT "BuUO|e SoI3511els 91e83.88e uo paseq s31a(41SIp puk s|jooyss uaamiag suone|ndod dnoudqns jo Alljigesedwod
3uipJe3aJ suoisnjpuod Aue Suimedp uj uoiIned sa8un Juswedsq 8yl "uoi3aJ pue s11UISIP SulpUas S} Ul SJOoYDS 3Y3 JO 8ew Jodjw e

2 01 paJinbau jou si jooyds Janeys e Jo uoiusodwod dnoadgns sy "Alinbut Jayling spingd 03 pue 43S}l [00YDS J9LIBYD SY] UIYHM SPUIL) SUILWLID}DpP
0} Ajliewid pue Ajuo 22ua1a)aJ 1oy pajuasaud si ) ‘suoiie|ndod juapnis jo Aljiqesedwod Suipiedaa uotlewlojul swos apiaoad ued g xipuaddy

u] papinaold se ease o1ydea3093 e uj s|ooyas o1gnd J1ay3o Jo 1eyj 03 [00YdS Jo1ieyd e Ul elep jusw(joua dnot3gns Jo suosiiedwod ysnoy

‘(s|ooyas 1914151p 104
Aeid 193y8i| pue ‘sjooyds 493Jeyd Jo) Aead sadaep) |0oyds uosliedwod |enplAlpuUl Yoea Ul 98e3ua249d JUSW||0JUS SY3 JO) Saul| AiE plloS e
pue {,(1IND) 1984e] SuimolieN deg 3y} 4oy aul| Huld polope e
‘;zXapui uosiiedwod ayl 4oy sui| paJ pajop e e
M3IA3Y JO Alewwng
[00Y2S 2lignd J31eyD aA1zes2doo) umoy||iH



0% 98e4 uoieanp3 Alepuodas pue Alejuswsa)] 4o Juswiiedaq S119SNYIeSSe

6107 8102 £107 Ehield S10T
- - —_— - —_ * ._ = RIS IE . - . Q
8¢ _ 92 | ve _. Za 0z (Lpe) 12612 | Buimouep) degy m..ﬁll.l!.l.l..llr..mld'ltla! rl'llﬂmll'ltr-.l.m.mllr.lq“hlwwm
9t e | e | 4z 92z #epujuosyedwoy | IE x o
0L | 0 | 0 | S0 | Jo Spuueng 114 st
Sz | 8¢ | gz | €z | ‘Z HEPSk [ o
| a7
_ ng -
8-4 8A o=y o= -y leah 1ad paalas sapein) _ 5€ M
B I Y | S A_ ..... __, [emsig) parasjag yomsiq oy | m“ 7 W P
6l 602 | loe OBL | S8 abelany spiraieIg [ = _ © M
E0 | SO | €D 60 | Ol [POY2S 1=2UEY] _ _ww q.o E
BLOZ  8L0Z L0 91072 SL0Z _ om | .H
_. s m
oL |
bse |
pa[[0Jul 9 7 08
. : —— , 58
ysiduj 10N adensue] 15114 b o
o
ol
s10030§ s dmo)y S10043S SRTEY) CUI0D) eree IND Xopu] uestmdwo) e e ALY 1554 TRIPIN [RIS R Tq Jav sproaneg T00EIS ALY i
5102 LY 01 araz stz |
- - [
—— e i gy ! -2 05
1 rA S Y T 1 E0  (LN9)=bie] Buimonep deg o i o il ° a1
8L | S L A oL__. #3puj UosleduIo]) 51
oo ) 6o | 0o | 00 | 00 SEnf) sy Rl
9L | bl 21 L0 ' 80 uelpaly sz
e m
5C =
o-M a- 0= o-% a-3 1eaf 1ad panlas sapeiq) wM _.w.” m
.. .. L 4 4 . \_ ) 4 omsIg) perosiag 1ams] o _ mm m M
50L | zo. | se | os | 5@ abeliany spisaEg 55 | # =
oo | oo | 00 | 00 | 00 [eoyas IsueyY]) {od .E
6LOZ gloz  A0e aLog Slog a3 -
I oL
74
Pejjoius ¥ 7 Of
e g _ 58
sisutes] adengue ysisul L os
L ag
Lo

mwﬁuuv_m uedsg opein Xm_}_mw 9661 153 - uciduwiey isej - [SOYDS DG io1ieud w>_wm.thOQU LAMO]||IH

M3IAZY Jo Alewwing
|ooYdS 21|qnd Ja1deyd a2A13e49doo) umol|iH



1€ a89ed

uoljeanp3 AJepuodas pue Alejuawa|l o Juawitedaq s1asnydessey

_ ET0T R10T L10T areL 007
— T 0
Ls
7 S .._. - ;:.ZwuHmm_m._.mc:}o:m_..__n_m.w o > > . e > 4 D S0 = & & W > - - o - o1 -
z'el 92 | 02 L i e mepujuospedwo] | oo 971 o a4 Eﬁ.::& m
g 55 LS avl =18 ANENT 514 58T BRI S ver _M | =
LEL 8L 6Ll 69l 58l HEIPSL L “a _ M
s¢ 4
-3 0 9-% -3 9-M 1eari 13d panias sapeI) “H _ W N
J ) J ) . (19ms|0) p123|35 101SI Op) oe m _..um
(=8 Ll pLL L abelany apinaEig gg | @
68l | 889 | 5S4 Ll =3 [POYOG 1=21eY] v W
610z 810z 110z 910z SLOZ 3 o
DL 0
LT MM
p2|10iu3 % oF .‘-M
3 SE 0
SOIIIGeSI LIM SIUBPMS
56
-
5;00425 1anQq dwo) $100935 S9wg) “dmO mae IND XU CostRAOD e e anEnd Ing o RPN FRDSH] — Bay FpIvAInS JO0RIS FUTLE) mmm
BT0Z 8I0T LT0T 9Tz ytiE
R A — 0 |
= = iz = 1
B T - S 1 SoL | &8  (IND)webe] Bumouey deg m
Stz | g€e | vez | 66 | 98 Hapu| dosueduios m
_8€z | L1z | g1z | L6l | g9 a[n1eni 1sig 2
_Z6c | 8%c | 298¢ |z | BYE HEIPSK =
g — E:
st 1’9y o wmm———— | ¥ w_
o-% g% 0= g-y - 1eaf 13d paslas sapeic) A, w0 e > |n“.-m— 98t 07 3 5
T ] = _“”_U_h.._m_ﬁ: pa1oa|ag 10nsI(] O o e - W o ; ES 3
A A A il & iz 62 =
Zle | 0ze | zoe | viz | €92 abeiony splaamg | 5 BEe £ 8
25l L'9L SH | 99 | €6 [00Y9G 1=y e am_
6107 gLoe 10z aLoe SloZ i
b ose &
| ()
pa1foIu3 % S
(9L0Z-5L0Z 21 lond pash se m awoauy| Ma) _ &
posejueApesIq Ajlesiwouody , _
' * os
| I -
{g0-) :uedsg speiny xey) 56T "153 - uoldweH 1seg - |[00Y2S D1|gnd Janeyd sanelsdoo) Umol|iH

M3IN3Y Jo Aewwng
[00Y2S 21|qnd 491EeYD aA13eIad00) UMOY|IH



7€ 28ed uoleanp3 AJepuod3S pue AJeluswsa|] JO Juswedaq s119sNYIeSSe|A

‘uonIuUNg I71LYVYND
$,192%3 1OSOU2IA BUISN PAALIBP SI SIYL "S|O0YDS UOS[JedWIOD || JO UBIPIW Y3 PUB JIGUINU 1S3][BWS S} UIS3MIS] JOGINU 3|PPIW 3Y3 S| 3]i14enb 1541} 8y 4

*UORPUNY NYIAIN S,[92%3 140501911 Suisn paaLISp S SIYL 'S|ooy2s uosiieduod [je Jo anjeA julodpiw 3yl ,,

‘|[9A3| |O0YIS BY3 3B uoi}idiie 03 paiedwod AjgeuoSEal 94 J0UUED [9AS| 121JISIP BY3 1B UOI1IJ1IE S2UIS UOIII1IE J0) papn|dul 1ou aJe sadejuadsad 1013sIq o

“1e3aA |00Yds 9Y3 InoyZnouyl jooyas 40 121JISIP B U] Ulewal S1Uspnis Auew moy sasnseaw a1ey Ajigeis ayl o,

*Je3A snojaald 3y} pajjolua asam Asyl yoiym uj apead syl Supeadasu auam oym z-T sopedsd ui SJuapnis pa||olus Jo a8ejuasdiad ayl .,

‘sJeaA ojwapese snoinaad oml sy Ul Jujod Swos 18 Uaag pey 1ng “113 ue AjpuaJind ou

JU2pN3s B S| 3U3PNIS 173 JoWU04 W "SIH[IGeSIP ULM JU3PN1S B 10 “T73 JBWJO0) 40 “T73 JO ‘BWO0IUl MO| J3Y1ie SB paleudisap SIays 40 ay I spaau Y3ty sl 1uspnis Y o,
“1Xau 8y} Jo SujuuiFaqg ay3 pue Je3A |00YyIS BUO JO PUD 3Y3} U2MISQ |00YIS BY3 BABS| SJUSPNIS P3||0JUD YIIYM 1e 91l J0 ‘Uoiililie o a3eluadlad ay] 4,

‘(sjooyas
1013sIp 104 AeJ8 191y8BI) pue ‘S|jooyas Ja1eyd oy Aeus Jaxiep) |00yds uosiiedwod |enplalpul yoes ul a8ejuadiad Byl 40} saul| Az:E PIOS e

pue ‘sjooyas uosiedwod ||e Jo a8ejusdiad 4,3|134enb 1su1f Y3 JO) BUI| <!

R
SRS

%) po1IOPE e
{sjooyas uosliedwod e jo a8ejusdiad ,UeIpaW Byl o sul|~ | il PIJOPE e

'9z25BJ9AR 1D111SIP UOSIIEALIOD 3Y] JOJ BUI| N PIOS B *
‘o8eJane apIMa1e]S DY) JOJ dul

plose e
‘looyos 1914eyd ay3 Sujauasaidal auj| yoe|q pjog plose e

‘Yum ‘waog

ydeds auy) ul sueaA ajdinw ssotoe Ajjeuipnu8uog paAe|dsip ale pailsl| elep ‘sjqe|ieAe | “sieaA aAl) U334 3SOW Y3 SUlINP S|OOYIS JO 135S 10 |[00YdS
e sjuasasdas ydeus ayy uo aul yoe3z ‘dnoudqgns spasu ySiy ay3 ui s3uapnis 104 91k AlljIqels pue ‘sjuapnis ||e 4o} 91ed Alljigels ‘93ed 3nodoup
‘(a]qeonjdde 41) a3es uonenpess uesA-unoy ‘, ,91el UOUDIAI ‘@oUBPUSIIE ‘18] UOISURdSNS [00YIS-J0-3N0 ‘B34 UOISURdSNS [00Ys-Ul ‘., dnoisgns
Spaau Y31y ay3 Ul SJUIPNIS 0} 3)Ed UOIHIIIR ‘SJUSPNIS |[B 10) ,,@1B4 UOIILIIIE :SI01eJIPUl BUIMOI||0) 3Y3 104 Blep uosiiedwod apnjdui sydets ay |

SHYOLVIIANI LN3IANLS

M3IA3Y j0 Alewiwing
[00Y2S 21|gnd Jo14ey) aAilesadoo) umoy||IH



c€¢ 28ed

uonieanpy Alepuodag pue Aleluswa|3 JO JuUdWIeda( S3ISNYIBSSEIA

______________ Lz | va

| 92 | 68

N
Y

ety
Ok

SpiEni P L
uelpay

8-
66 |
Lz |

6102

A 8N
boL | ool |
LS L8

8102 1102

8
Lo
L6l

910z

ook
0zl
102

% LWOnLAY
speeN YsiH

12af 15d panias sapeiq)
abelany apimaelg
|ooyog Jauey)

5107

BI0Z 9102

L5 L -

T6T - ST

=]
i W
v ~”

o
¥
o, 1A3d
spaen YHH - NOILILLY

sjpoyog yomsig 'dwon

3juenig py|

LIPS abelany apimaiRIg |0OYDG 1aNRY)  —

g6 |
59

[N
£L | €9

_pE |
gg |

£6

Spienm piv L
UEIpS|s|

8-2

58 |

g |
FALIYA

8-M
L8
ZnL |
9102

8-

L8

B8
SLog

6LOZ glozg

Op uonLLY
sjuspMs IV

1eaf 1ad paalas sapeig)
afielaay apiwaiig
|ooyog 1euey

20T S16T

~ oa

=
i
r-
B
2
~

o - os |

4
M

L oor
5.8 g
00T
0sL
nog
0sE
0oy
ey
005
0SS
o9
s
Fo00L
0%
nug
0's8
0as
DB}
0ot

o — g e ——
ot

g JUF3J3d
SWIBPNIS Y - NOILIYLLY

{80-) :ueds apein XN} SE6T 153 - Ucldwey 15e7 - [o0YoS JI|gnd ta1ey) aanesadoo) uMol|IH

M3IN3Y Jo Aewwng
|o0YdS 21jgnd Ja1eyD aA1esadoo) umol|jiH



7€ 28ed uoneanp3 Alepuodag pue Alejuswa|3 Jo Juawiedaq $319sNYIeSSeA|

BT LT 9T s10¢ TIOL

60 | 1L el

91 | 5% 8¢

3IEN 1514
uelpay)

2= 2= - -3 o3 leaf 1ad panas sapeln)
o \ ..... ) .._ | A | - ‘. | B .. (1msIg) p219a|2G 101sI] O

_ _ A Bt abelany apimalElg
00 | 00 | J ] Jooyag 1sueyq
gloZz LloZ  9l0Z  SloZ

vlL0Z

9% Uolsuadsng |[ooy25-1e-1nQ0

o'

o

not
()]
ang
0z
nog
DEE
oo
b5y
oos
Dhy
ooe
[
QoL
LS
D'OR
05E
oos
NG |
&O0T m

% 1Usuad

% UOJSUBHSTIE |OOLY05-J0-IN0 - JOIESIPU| IISPNIS

sj00g25 sk “dwo) S[00G2§ RUTY) T mme

AT AT <o

TIPAY

FRIECe P

Ay Iptuaials

0TI FTYD e

alenig s
UBIPS[s

1eaf 1ad panas sapeiq)

K (1omsI) pe103|as5 10msI oy
abelany spimaiEIg
0005 131RY Y

83 8 8 8% 8

= i ; - -
810

8l | 21 | eL | 81 | 17
|

2102 aLne Slog rloZ

9 UoISUadsSnS |00UDS-U|

._ 210T

L0

e

o0

00

90T

Gy 1U3ZJad

% Uoisuadsng (0T I5-U| - JOIRI|EU| YISPAIS

{80~ :ueds apelo xejy) 661 153 - uciduwey 15e3 - [COYIS 21|gnd JeLBYD aanleadoo]) uMaol||iH

M3IN3Y Jo Alewwng
|00Y2S 21|gnd 4314eY) anlle adoo) umol||iH




G¢ 98eqd uol1eonp3 AJlepuodas pue AJejuswa|d Jo Juswpedaq s1iesnyoessen
| Bz 1w 9102 ST0Z VIOT
| Y= — e K e e e pemm——— N ¢}
- - 0 o 5 o1 oo; 08
00 | o0 [ 00 | oo © 00 Sjieng ¥si4 o
00 | 00 | 00 | 00 | 2D uepsly = 0
(314 5
00E o
-3 -3 a- 9-3 a-3 1eaf 1ad panias sspeic) O'SE W
- \_ o M J .- P (1omsiq) paoajag wInsi op oor 4 m.
€L | gL ¢ §s1 | §1L ¢ g1 sbeiany spInaRIg ose | & B
00 | 00 S0 | 41 0o [PoYag i=eyY] .MMM 2 5
L oG z
glog 02 9102 Sloe vloZ . 7
0's9 ®
0oL w
- ose 3
20" ®
9% LuonilUSIoY boose
) I 008
I ose
[ 0ot
SO st ‘o) SIOORIS RIRQ) GU0) we I AT o v TEIPYY LIRS - I5¥ pLUIRIS H00S AT mue
910z L1027 9102 ST PI0T
. ¢ ——+ 10
vPE | GPE | 2PE | SPE | 9B N 1si4 eSS
286 | Lss | pSe | b'SE 556 HEIpS 0
L 22 0 bas ]I V5o 1) .
B
059 3
-3 g- g-M a-y 8- 1eaf 1ad pan1as sapei) M -
5 | . J J ;“l-._...|..|h [10msig) pa1o2jag 101sig oy b ooe = W
9pc | 996 | BPE | L'PE | EPE abeiany aplmarg | -
99 | 195 | £E95 | EPE | L'SE jooyag 1su=y] [ost 1 3 3
8lDeé U0 9l0e s5l02  $loZ2 | ® 2
0Us e
N
- 1058 3
[1]
. 006 ES
% uuepusnYy '
- — 056
! = o6 pree
998 TIa 33 L -

(80~ :ueds apeio Xe) S66T 153 - UoIdweH 1Se3 - [00YDS dIjgNd J9LIBYD SAIIRISHO0D UMOY[IH

M3alnay jo Alewwng

|[00Y2s 21|qnd Ja1ey) aAeladoo) umol|iH




o¢ adeq uoieanp3 Alepuodas pue Alejuswa|l o Juswiiedaq s118sNYIESSEeIA]

20T LWT 14 5507 ¥10Z
g _ | _ -+ oo

ajmen) sy [ oo
e 0'5Y

I owz

East
E ove
g-3 G- a3 - e | 1=afd 1od panias sapeiq) L a'sE

— L., howsg)pawsjeg owsig oy [ oo
S06 | w16,/ | E€6 | V6 sbeisny spihaIEIg ..Nw”
onoL | oool | 286 | 286 | 998 [ooyog 181y [ oss |
810z 110z 910z SI0Z  bloZ | ous

| 059

o YBIH ‘43|19 &3S - JO1E3IPU| WBRNIS

%23ey Ajjiges
SpaoN ysiy ; o

0aut Pistiy b L il

% Spa

SOOPS WS A0 e FOOTS PUEYY HDOD e SIIID KRS »o  WHIN IO SOV OANS . . [OOIPS ML) e

0L L0z L1 SI0T 14114
. 00
— O os
98 | zes | e | 016 | 516 Spueng 114 aor
_l5e | 8se | 8v¥e | SPE. | P uelpaly —
(13174
oSt |
12af Jad panias sapein) ”MM 7
e 4 , (300sI]) pSos|eg 10Insi oy o5: |l
bZE | L'tE | _BSB abelanyg apinaieig oS _
See | Les | 986 |ooyag 19uEyT .
8l MOz 9l0Z S1l0Z g . Mw“
_ 0%9
00
(72
%216y Auqels L vos
ose
SUsPms ||v 006

SR B - R ° |

9% A3)[19B1G - JOIED| FU | JUBENIS

| e gt T {95 395+ 070OE

{30~ :ueds speiD Xe) SEET 153 - uoldwey 3Se3 - |[ooYDs 31|gngd J91iey] sAaleIsdo0]) UMOY||IH

M3IARY Jo Aewwing
|[ooyas 21jgnd 1o1ey) aalzesadoo) umol|iH



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

APPENDIX C: STUDENT PERFORMANCE

The following tables are taken from the 2019 Official Accountability Report for Hilltown.

OVERALL RESULTS

Overall progress toward improvement fargets

| Annual erifeticr-téferenced largel percentage ' . 5% ' e SO

Wem: 40% | __&0%
lative criter ferenced target percentage %

(7018 x 40%) + {2019 x 50%} Substantial progress lovard targe

2019 Points awarded

2019 Progress toward improvement tergets

All students. ] ] owest performing students
___Dion-tigh schiool wﬁﬂ].__ == k= -_JM"!&E.W
Points | 'rau.m.u: l'lught| Points ] Tuupm-u.-
- English @nguage aits 2 4 - | 2 | # | .
- athievemeni |
Achievement: Mathermatics achievemnant | 1 I W— =T | " T— 4 =
[ Stience achievement 4 3 S - -
: ‘Achievement total T 2 (7 A T/ § 8 BT5
S E Englishianguage asgrowth | 3 4 o 2 — 4 |-
Growth | i | Mathematics grovdh i 2 i 4 | z 1 =
: & Growthtofal BT i e =T V=S 2 8 228
Faut-year cshorl el - - | - | - f = =
1. 00 c Extended nent rate i - - [~ i - = ey &
Hlnh SRR CRpAEon JAnnual d:‘opcru! rale [ = I - . 3 - -
i o - S =
! Ch_lcl_'tla'. absentesism 3 4 | 3 | 4 _
Additional indicators g;ummmﬂm - - = - | : |
Additional indicators total 3 4 10.0 4 4 10.0
|Weighted lotai 62 | M3 | - | 48 18§ =
Peraenlage of puuih!! poinis . BO% . IR U -
Criterion-referenced target percamsge. 56%

2018 Points awarded

Enghish language arls 3 |
- #chievement

Achievement Mathematics achisvemant 2 4 B 2| 4
Il Scienta achisvamant & 4 = | - | 2 =
Achievement total 5 12 w5 B 8 67.5
] | Engllish languags ars growth 3 4 - 3 | 4 1
Growth: i | Mathematics growin 2 3 - | 2 | 4 -
] Growth total 5 8 S €l 225
Four-year cohord urﬁdua‘hon rate. - £ =R || I =
: - Extended engagement rate - - - | - | .
High school completion Annual dropal rate - - - | - -
High achool compietion total B - - = A =
Progress toward atmining English language  English language proficiency . 2 = b = =
Nt e et i L bl s s e iall 2
Chranic absenteeism 4 4 - 1 | 4
- o Advanced c - - - - . -
Additional indicators Cm']p']':"gn Chiseves | |
Additional indicators total 4 4 10.0 1 4 10.0
{Weighted folat 48 103 « | 583 & <
Petcenlage of possible poinis 45% = o T0% -
Criterion-referenced target percentape 59%

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 37



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

RESULTS FOR STUDENTS IN THE HIGH NEEDS SUBGROUP

[ High neads v]
Overall progress toward improvemant targets
| 2018 2049
Annual criferion-referenced iarget percentage 16% 83%
Weight . o 40% 60%
Cy criteri i 1 target percentaue

{2018 x 40%) + (2019 x 60%)

2019 Points awarded

219 Prn(;u'ess toward improvement tnmﬂn

Subsiantial progress toward fargefs

Additional indicators

\ 'Je-ghled lofal

| 2019 Annual criter

2018 Points awarded

-referenced target p _. :

2018 Proggress toward irn(wmcnt targets

Englnsh language arls achisvement

Mathemalics ach:e"irrwnr
Science achievement
Achievement fotal
English langyage aits arovin

~ Ktathemalics gmwlh

Growth total

Four-year cohort graduation rale
E)dendad engagament rala
nnnuai dropoud rate

muh school cmpum total

Encluh hmuaur.pmﬁcimcy total
Chrenic sheentesism

Advanced ccursm.rurl“ corna:ehon
Additional indicators tofal

o
w
b |
o

B3%

High school completion

Progress toward aﬂ:hhg:&mllm language proficiency

Additional indicators

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

guaga arts achisvemeant

iiathemalics achievement
Soence achievement
Achievement total

English language arts gravdh
Mathematics arovith

Growth total

Feur-yaar cohort graduation rale
E.‘ﬂended engagsment rate
Annusl drapout rsle

High school compiletion total
English tanguage proficiency total
Chronic absenteeism

Adyanced cotrsawork compistion
Additicnal indicaters total

Page 38



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

DETAILED DATA FOR EACH INDICATOR

Group 2018 Achievement 2019 Achlevement Change 2019 Tarpet N Polnts Reason
All Students 504.1 | 504.4 2.3 | 503.1 150 2 improved Selow Targel
t awast Perfarming 4850 [ 872 22| 4381 29 2 impraved Beloy: Targe?
High needs 4880 4900 20 | 4892 47 ¢ Exceeded Target
Ecen Disadvantaged 4877 . 1853 T 14 | 4887 22 Declinad
L and Former £L = - - 1 _ - a = -
Studenis v/ dissbilites 4825 | 487 1 46 | 484.0 37 4 Exceeded Target
Amat Ind or AaskaNat - . o - 1 - E - T
2cin - : ~ - | 5 1 - -
At Amer,/Black . | : < = 2T = 3
HispanicLatine = T = - - 79 = .
Mult-race, No -Hisp sLat - - - - 15 - =
A&t Haw or Pacif Ist = . — | - - | - .
White 5042 5054 1.2 5052 125 3 et Target

Group 2018 Achlevement 2019 Achievement Change 2019 Target N Points Reason
All Students 3018 5011 -0.5 | 5029 168 1 No Change
Lovesl Performing 4812 4830 o _!7__._ ?5_0_ ] _29_ T 2 Improved 2ejow Tatget
High needs 487.0 j 4253 23 4883 8] 4 Exceeded Target
Econ Disacvantaged 4879 R g 489.4 3] & sceeded Targel
EL and Former £L E P ” 5 s == - =
Studenis v/ disabilities 4834 484.5 h1E] 4855 37 2 Improved Below Target
Amar nd cr Aska Nat - - i - | - - = -
Aslan * - - - 1 - -
Al Amer/Black - = - - ) - -
HispaniciLatino F R = 70 - i
Multi-race, Nor-Hisp Lat o - - - ] 16 Z -
Mat. Haw. or Pacif Ist - = = | = - - -
White ' 5023 ; 5022 01 | 5038 127 1 No Change

Group 2018 Achievement 2019 Achievement Chanpe 2019 Target N Points Reason
All Stydants 76.9 824 Bb | 791 L 4 ! Exceeded Target
Lowast Ferforming ) - - — = == =1 - -
High naeds - = - ! - 18 * -
Ecan. Disadvantaged = . - _ B | g . R
EL and Forms? EL - - - | .
Siudgnts v/ disabiiities . _ 1 '_ - 1 . .
Amar Ind. or Alaska Nat = = = s
ek . . - - : > o 2
Afr Amer/Black - - - | - - - il -
Hispanic/Lating - - - - 1 - -
Mulli-race. Non-Hisp2Lial = - - ' - 8 - -
Nat, Haw or Pacii |s: - = - - s - -
wWaite 81.4 808 65 837 43 1 o Change
Group 2019 Mean SGP i N Points Reason
All Skudents 523 123 | B | Typical Growsth - High
Lovest Periorming 495 28 2 Typics! GrovAdh - Low
High needs 487 41 2 Typ1eat Grovah - Low
Econ Dissdvaniaged - 18 - -
£l and Former EL - ~ - .
Siudenis v/ disatililies IES 32 3 | Typical Growth - High
Amer Ind. or Alaska Nai v - - 1 -
Azian £ T C <
Afr AmerfBlack . 2 £t .
Hispan:Latino N 5 E ' -
Itulti-race, Non-HizpsLlat - 17 - -
Natl Havs or Pazif Isi - - -
533 104 2 Tepical Grovitn - High

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 39



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Mathematics growth - Non-high school About 1f
Group 2019 Mean SGP N Points Reason

&1 Studenls 187 129 2 Typica! Growth - Low
Lowest Parforming 478 20 2 Typical Growth - Low
High needs 43.8 43 2 Typical Grovith - Low
Econ. Dizadvanizged _ 51.2 20 3 g Typical Griwih - High
:E“i:énd Former EL - = - -
Students w/ disabililies 475 33 2 Typical Growih - Low
| Amer Ind. or Alaska Nat. - E - S

- 1 5 .

= 2 . .

; - — :

Nulfi-race, Nan—HisF..l’Lat. - 13 - B -
Nal Haw, or Pacif st . - . T e
White - 493 107 ) o Typical Growah - Low

Progress toward attaining English language proficiency - Non-high school

Group 2018 Rate (%) 2019 Rate (%) Change Tarpet N Points Reason
All Students - - - ] I = = -
Loviest Perfoming _ : : R 5 S -
High needs . - - = | - =
Econ, Disadvantaged a : = = i = — .
L and Former EL - = - - - -
Studentsw cisabilies B 5 > —) = S = E e
Amar Ind. or Alaska Nat - H = & -
Asian - = : = - =i =T c
Afr. Amer./Black < - a . F = ERE
HispaniciLating - - - = . = s
Multi-raze, Non-Hisp./Lat, = : - i = = o =
Nat Haw, or Pacil. Ik, - - - - - = 1 .
\White = - - = = = =

Chronic absenteeism - Non-high schoot Aboul the Data

Group 2018 Rate (%) 2019 Rate (%) Change Target N Points Reason
All Students 35 56 21 22 128 | 3 Vet Target
iLowest Pedorming 103 34 -5.9 6.8 28 4 Exceeded Target
High needs a 48 68 18 23 5 ¢ 0 Declned
£con. Disadvantaged g3 74 11 2.6 27 g Declineg
£L and Former EL = = - = 1 =1 - T .
Students w/ disabilites 48 45 .3 1.5 44 3 Met Targel
Amer_Ind. or Alaska Nzt = - - ] T =1 = 1 —
Asian - - - - 2 . -
Afr. Amer./Black - . D R
Hispanic/Latino = = - - 7 1 = . =
Multi-race, Nen-Hisp.iLat - * > = __EE e .
Nat. Haw. of Padif |51 z - = : - = :
Vihite 38 49 11 24 w2 | 3 NelTamel

Assessment participation - All students

Group English language arts Mathematics Science
Enrolled Assessed % Met Target? Years in Rate Enrolled Assessed % Metl Target? Years in Rate Enrolled Assessed % MetTarget? Yearsin Rale
All Students: {55 ¢ 5% g7 Yes 1 156 154 g9 Yez il 52 52 | 100 Yes 1
Group English language arts Mathematics Science Overall
Enrolled Assessed Enrolled Assessed Enrolled Assessed TotalEnrolled Total Assessed % MelTarget? Years in Rate
High needs 45 47 43 48 13 18 14 13 a9 Yes L
Ecen. Disadvanizged L2 2 23 23 9 i 3 55 54 l'e8 Yes | 1
EL and Former EL - - - - - - - - - = -
Studen's v/ disabillies 37 7 37 37 13 13 97 27 100 ves 1
Anier Ind, cr Afaska Kai - = = - - . - - = =
Asian : 1 1 1 1 1 3 - = = -
Al Amer/Black 2 2 2 2 - - 4 - - - -
Hispaniz/Latino 7 7 T 1 1 15 - - - .
Multi-zace, Nop-HispLal 6 15 18 16 g 5 338 - - - -
Hat. Hav o Pacil Il - - . - - - ] - - =
Whita 129 128 1380 128 44 44 303 203 98 Yes 1

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 40



T 93ed uol1eanp3 AJepuo2as pue Alejuswiall Jo Juawnedsq S11asnydessep

Wi A A A A A £S1S0D PBUDHSAND JC B3 )pNe 2YL S| 3
win A A A A A LSYYO 18pun aouB)duIcOUON JO SSIUBISU)J0 2@ IpNE 8wy S| @
¥iN A A A A A ¢Aauspyeq uRdMUBIS Jo SEUIDUY 10 3EH IPNE UL ST D
Wi A A A A A 4SSEUNEBAN [EUBIEI JO SOUIPUY Jo @3 )pNe 3y S| 8
wIN A A A A A ¢uoindo payjenbun ue @PNPUILIPNE 8 PIA Y
| gLAd woi) Guipuly jeaday LA J101edipu] Jpny

(jeuondo) j00UyDS WO SJUSWILLECD SIS _n_o.._m:_u_.

$56'69F'y § IHS'988 0§ 90L'858 S 6¥TEL6 § £0€'566 S 9v9'gle § €02'%08 & S19SSV I8N {e104
959's53'0L § 099'€EE’e S SHI'L08'C § BRO'SPO'C 5 FCE6PY'E § C99'460'C & 02)'699Z § saJmipuadxy e
TIRLET'LL § ESH'EEE'E § Y00'€SL'E § €66'129'C § 181'59Y'C § DOE'B0T'E § 18L'816'T & S3NUBASY |R101
995 01z 0z 21z 81z Lz €6 Juawyjjosu3

X55°0 *gs'0 X180 X080 X080 X610 A} 21350 1010 L 6q PApIIP

ZONIQEI] 210 | 58 PIT|n3|E]) "SUOnEIId e 53] IIURUY 02 SPUNY PIAGIIOG UD FDIDS [GOYIS (3 YDIYM G WUIIXY IYY Soliiew

v v v A 4 v v v oney 19SSy 03399 *J

%¥'0 %LT %L %90~ %S0 %PE %S9 “SnusAoY 16101 AQ PIPIAP £1950y 19}y U SBUCYD 28 POIRIIIED 2UsIa1)S WIWSBCUR Y243 7,[00425 & Z3InseIw

v v fay N v v v aBrjuaaind sjassy 3aN ul abBuey) g

SINUIAYY

%vE %l %6 %6 %l %yl %EL |t10 ) Aq PIPIAIR 9t|d Jo sa5uadx] Buppucy) § BuntsedQ-uopy Zn|d soutudquity } uentiRdg se paeoje] wtd

40 s9susdxg Bupueul g Bupesddg-uop pUS ULUNUILIA B VoNTRAQ U0 s INUdAIY |R30 | 10 dBEausIINd 3y saunsEIW

v v v v v Vv v san||19e4 Uo papuadxy aNUaA3Y [BIc) 4o 2Bejuaalad g

%96 %6 %c6 %26 Ye¥b %56 %96 *£3209d3 020 1 fq PPIAIR (539840 [19P2.4 + SUOINQUINOY PURN-U] « vORINL)

26 PRILIN2[tD FEIB [RIIPDJ PUT UGRINY G PYPUDY D18 3&YT 522USdII [£101 5,|00YDZ Y JO 363U I FINTRIW

v h 4 A 4 v v v v sjueis [eaapad g uoning kg pled weiboid o sBejuasiag ¢

%L6 %26 %6 %16 %Z6 %ER %ES z22u3d3 |10 L 9 papialp (suonnquiveg

PUIY-U[ + VORI L] ¢ PAIE[ROED UONIM AG A]2INUd PIPUNZ U8 InYy 395u3dXT £I0Y 5,100Y22 ) Jo 3BtILedId Yy FHNseIW

v v v v v v v uony £q pied weiBold jo oBeiuasiad ‘g

ABPYS JuAWRTd BONIN H|YauoW

19 89 9 £5 68 £6 <6 UBNND DY) WO Poseq Fl 21| N0 dui, - ¢ dx3 payeraadagy dx3 |0 1)) 4q papimp nu.co_n>_=vu

Y58 put Yse0) S8 PILN|C] Y5 JO MO|SUI 1IYIOUE ANOY UM £d5uadxs s11 ded ued [eoyds & shep dusw Moy s3jedIpYl

v > A 2 v v v ysen sheq pajouisaiun g

X9'€ X6 L{R X6'L XG'E Xg'y XB'E
UR4IN2 A PIPIAIP F1975C WRLIND £€ PAT|NATI 31 YT H[EIY [EI2UEUY WIRY-110Y5 put AIUBRH)D [cuones2da Jo 2InsLaW € 5)
v v g v v v v oney uaNg °3

oAy VW 6LAL DAV .eakg 6LAd 8LAd AL 9LAd SIN3A [Bl1dURUL]
ASIY YBIH Aienusiod 4 ¥Shy ajeispoly ASIY MO W
Alpwuing |eioueUl IB3AG

661 153 - uo)dwie 3se3 - [00YDS NN JapeyD eARe1edo0] UMO|IH

JONVNI4 :d XIAN3IddV

M3IARY JO Alewwng
jooyas a1jgqnd Jauey) aailesadoo) Uumol|(iH



7t 93ed

uoneanp3 Alepuodag pue Alejuawa|3 Jo Juswiiedad S3IOSNYIBSSEIA]

"BJEP ,S|00YIS JAPBYD [[E JO S[BJO} IPIMA}E)S B}
Buisn pajeinofes sabeiase ase s13quinu asay) ‘smos saunypuadxy [ejo s
pue sjassy jaN [ejof ‘Juawijjorug 104 'S[E}0) apimaje)s Buisn pajenojes

o/j&J YaBa jO JNSas B aJe VWINJOD Sy} W) PIJESIPUS SILBLU (BIOUBUY ||V

_
uunio] AV YIN 8LAd

{amsn|oul) | pue g usamisg

6 =>

"sjassy
{8101 Aq papip Saipijiqer] [Bo) Se pajeinojes “suojesado sji aoueuly
O} SpUN} PamaLIog UO Saifal JOOYDS Al YoIUM O] JUBYXS By} SaINSeayy

oney 1assy o1 34ag .L

% >

9,0 Pue {saisn|aul) o4z- Lasmiag

% 8ANSO

‘(abejuaaiad
B Se passaidx3) anusaay [ejoy AqQ pspiAlp Sjassy jaN ui abueyn
se pajejnojen Aousionys Juswabeuew YSED S,j00yIS & SAUNSESW SHY |

afiejusotad sjassy 19N Ul abuey) .wi

%0t <

{anisnjouy) o,0€ PUB %G| LaamIEd

%S} =>

‘(ebejusosad &

Se psssaidxe) sanuanay [Bjot Aq pspialp jueld jo sasuadxg Sursueuiy
Bunesado-uop snid aaueusjuieyy 9 uopesadQ Se pajenaen ‘jueld

40 sasuadxg Busueuiy BuperadQ-uop pue soueuduiey B UoRRISD
U0 Juads sy jey) enuanay [ejay jo abejusdssd oy samnseaw S|

sanljior4 uo papuadxy
anuaaay |0 Jo abejuadciad G

%51 >

%06 PUe {ansN|ou) %G/ Uaamiag

%086 =<

%005 O

185 aie 9400} J9A0 SONj.s pue JOJRUILIOUSD Y] Uf SasuadX3 [ejoy ay) Ul
paunjdes aq ({im Yoium SaIMIpUadx3 puny-uj N SoUBieq O] aljes Siy} Ul
JojesaLwuny alyj o} pappe ase uoiinguiuos) punt-uj “ajoN “(ebejuaciad e se
passaidxa) sasuadx3 [ejos Aq papiaip (SjueiS) (e48pa + SUGRNGUIICY
puny-uj + uoginy) se pajeinope) ‘sjuesb jesapa; pue uoning Aq papuny
a.e jey) sasuadxa [BJ0} Sjooyos ay} Jo afipjuaaied ayy samnseat Sy

sjuels jelapaq g|
uoin| Aq preq weiboid jo abeuasiad p|

%51 >

%06 PUE {8AISN(DU}) %G/ usamlag

%06 =<

"9%00} O} }85 SUB %00} J8AQ SOHES pUE Jojeujuouap By} uj S9suadx]
18301 i ur parmdea 9 ji Yom sauMIpusdx3 punf-uj Jno souejeq
0} OfjRu Siy} Ui JOJRIBLUINU 3Y) O} PBPPE aje LORNGLILCY PUD-U{ :BJON

‘(abejusasad e se passaudxa) sasuadxg jejo Ag papinp (SuoNquiuos
puny-uj + uomny) se pajeinaien ‘uomng Aq Aauua papuny
aJe jey} sasuadxa (ejo} Sjooyos ay) o abejuaaiad ay} sainseaw Sy

uofling Aq pred wieifold yo abeluaolag ‘¢

shep pg >

sAEp 09 pue {aaisn|aul) gE usamlag

sAep )9 =<

"spooyas sapeyo Auew o) spuawded uoim 6102
‘aunp Bunjew aje| Sem snusAsy JO Juawpeda(q sy} Jey) ajou sses|q

(cog/([sasuadxgy

pajeioasdeg-sasuadxy (ejos}) Ag papiip sjusjieainb yseo pue yses se
PB}eINofes "YSEed JO MOYUI JAYJOUR INotpim sasuadxa s) ked ueo jooyos
e sAep Auew Moy sajeaipul ones puey Uo yses skep psjoujsasun ayf

yse she(] paansaun g

0>

%1y ubiy Ajlenuajod

§°L pUE {8aIsn|ouy) P} usamiag

‘sajnigel
JusLNo AqQ papiAlp SjaSSe JuaLna Se PAJRINAIES ST HD “Yieay [eloueul)
uvaj-poys pue fousioyys [Euoneiado 40 AUNSBaW B SI 0fjey Juauny

oney Jusuny v

ysiy 2e1apoy

M3JABY o Aewwng
[ooYdS 31|qhd 491eyD dA11eIado0oD) UMOY|[IH

51y MO

suoniulag JBW [RISURLI



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

APPENDIX E: SOURCES OF EVIDENCE | -

e Hilltown Academic Performance: Accountability/Assessment

e Hilltown Accountability Plan Performance (2016-19)

e Hilltown Annual Reports (2016-19)

e Hilltown Board Minutes

e Hilltown Board Committee Minutes

e Hilltown Student Enrollment Data and Student Indicator Data: DESE Charter Analysis and Review
Tool (CHART)

e Hilltown Recruitment and Retention Plans (2016-19)

e Hilltown Application for Renewal (2019)

e Renewal Inspection Evidence (2019)

e Hilltown Bylaws

e Hilltown Handbooks

e Hilltown Recruitment Materials

¢ Hilltown Translated Documents

e Hilltown District Curriculum Accommodation Plan (DCAP)

o Hilltown Newsletter to Families

e Hilltown Staff Roster

e Hilltown Staff Qualifications: Education Personnel Information Management System (EPIMS);
Educator Licensure and Renewal (ELAR)

e Hilltown Strategic Plan

¢ Hilltown Website

e Hilltown Summary of Review (2015)

e 2016 Coordinated Program Review: ELE CPR page; Non-ELE CPR page
e Year 22 Check-In Site Visit Report (2016)

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 43



Hilltown Cooperative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

'APPENDIX F: RENEWAL INSPECTION METHODOLOGY

The following staff of the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (ESE) conducted the
renewal inspection:

e Benie Capitolin, Office of Charter Schools and School Redesign (OCSSR), Department of
Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE)
e Melissa Gordon, OCSSR, DESE

The one-day core criteria renewal inspection was conducted at Hilitown Cooperative Charter School on
September 24, 2019. The renewal inspection team (the team) held focus group interviews, conducted
classroom observations, and reviewed documents and other information provided by the school as part
of the renewal process®.

The team conducted interviews with the following stakeholder groups:

e Board of Trustees: 4, including the chair and three other trustees.

e School Leaders/Special Education/English as a Second Language (ESL) Administrators: 4,
including the director of administration, the director of teaching and learning, the director of
community and family engagement, and the student services coordinator.

e Teachers: 11, including teachers representing grades K through 8, and the following content
areas: general education, special education, speech and language, and music.

The team conducted 17 classroom observations and recorded evidence of what they saw using a
classroom observation form developed by the Office of Charter Schools and School Redesign. The form
is aligned with the areas of inquiry referenced in the section Key Indicator 6.2: Instruction of this report.
Team members observed classrooms in grades K through 8 and in a variety of content areas, including
humanities, mathematics, Spanish, ELA, art, reading, science, writing, morning meeting, and music.
Team members also observed a learning strategies and ELA class for students with disabilities.

The renewal inspection schedule is included on the following page.

29 5ae the Application for Renewal of a Public School Charter and the Renewal Irspection Protocol for a complete
listing of the documents and other information provided by schools as part of the renewal process.

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Page 44



Hilitown Coo

RENEWAL INSPECTION SCHEDULE

September 24, 2019

perative Charter Public School
Summary of Review

Time Benie Capitolin Melissa Gordon

7:50-8:05 Team Meeting

8:05-8:20 Orientation with School Leader

8:20-9:20 Classroom Observations Board of Trustees
9:20-10:00 Classroom Observations
10:00-11:00 School Leaders & Administrators
11:00-11:50 Classroom Observations
11:50-12:50 Classroom Observations Teachers
12:50-2:35 ESE Team Work Time

2:35-2:50 Exit Meeting with School Leaders

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

Page 45



o_-! P
”
HiLLfowV CooQERATIVE
CHARTEE pueLIC $9CHoOoOL

Domain Directors Report to the Board of Trustees
January, 2020

1. The lasted projections for DESE show tuition payments to be about $16,173
higher than we budgeted. Domain Council is looking to amend this year’s
budget and bring it to the February BOT meeting.

2. This year, we are conducting a weekend Admissions Open House on
Saturday, January 25. More details will be discussed at the Board Meeting.

3. Progress Reports went out before Winter Break. In our third year with
Rediker, the technology was significantly smoother.

4. Dr. Kay Saakvitne (Sock-quit-knee) will be offering an evening presentation
for parents and teachers. Dr. Saakvitne is a clinical psychologist in private
practice in Northampton, MA and on faculty at the Smith School of Social
Work doctoral program. She is also a parent of a former HCCPS student
and a former board member of the Northampton SPEDPAC. Her talk is about
Adverse Childhood Experiences and how we can individually and collectively
support students coming from chronic stress or trauma backgrounds.

5. Teachers are organizing special curriculum for our Martin Luther King Day
Assembly, February mini courses, and an optional, local mathematics
competition for 5"-8" grade girls.

1 Industrial Parkway Phone: 413-529-7178 website: www.hillfowncharter.org
Easthampton, MA 01027 Fax: 413-5627-1530 e-mail: info@hillfowncharter.org



o - y

[ 4

HiLLTOWN COooQERATIVE
CHARTERE pueLICt 9CHoOV

Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes- December 18, 2019

Present: Gaby Blaustein, Lara Ramsey, Kelly Woods, Dawn Reeseman, Nicole Grinaski,
Liz Preston

Regrets: Dawn Reeseman

Topic Discussion Action

Salary Increase
Formula

We agree that median makes sense as a data point
for comparing salaries because it shows the central
tendencies and eliminates being pulled high or low
by an outlier (as an average would).

We consider our step system. It is a hidden bonus
that our school counts all years of full teaching
experience as a step on the scale. Can our school
afford this over time? Definitely helped us make
some of the hires we have made.

Do we want to acknowledge extra credits (grad
school, CCAGS)? Some other districts do.

We offer stipends for extra initiatives, mini-courses,
etc.

Committee affirms our understanding of the way we
currently prorate steps- we set a median 12" step and
a median 1% step, divide by 11. We raise step 1 and
step 12 by 1.5% or 1.75% and prorate difference.

We will ask the finance committee if there are
financial ramifications to the way we currently
operate.

Lara will find out
how much we have
spent on PD in the
last five years.

Review step
differences next
time we meet.

Clarify salary
recommendation
next time.
Consider once
again making a 1-
year rec.

Ask the Board to
articulate why the
Director’s salaries
are determined in a
different way than
staff salaries.

Where is our
salary policy
written down?

Next meeting
time/date/location

January 22, 7:30, Lara’s office

Adjournment

8:25 a.m.

1 Industrial Parkway
Easthampton, MA 01027

Phone: 413-529-7178
Fax: 413-527-1530

website: www.hilltowncharter.org

e-mail: info@hilltowncharter.org



